Annual Report 2016

In a year which was persistently dominated by low oil prices,
and macro and micro-economic repercussions of balancing
measures GCC governments have taken, Agthia managed to
record strong sales and profit growth. While it is clear that the
environment in 2017 will remain tough, the Company is still
committed to pursuing its five-year strategy to become one of the
Middle East’s leading food and beverage companies, thanks to
its robust core business fundamentals.
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About Us

We are a leading Abu Dhabi-based food and beverage company.
Established in the UAE in 2004, and listed on the Abu Dhabi Securities
Exchange (ADX) since 2005, the Agthia Group consists of a world-class
portfolio of integrated businesses and brands.
We provide high-quality, trusted, and essential food and beverage
products for customers and consumers across the UAE, GCC, Turkey,
and the wider Middle East.

Milestones
A Government-owned and managed company

1978

1990

2006

2008

Flour Mills and Animal Feed
Company established by the
late HH Sheikh Zayed bin
Sultan Al Nahyan

Al Ain Mineral
Water Company
established

Appointment of new
management

Acquisition of
Al Ain Vegetable
Production and distribution
agreement with Capri-Sun

1981

2004 – 05

2007

2009

Animal Feed
production started

Formation of Emirates
Foodstuff and Mineral Water
Company (Agthia) as part of
Abu Dhabi Government’s
privatization initiative

Acquisition of Ice
Crystal in the UAE

Egypt greenfield
operation starts

IPO – Listed on ADX
with 49 percent of the
company offered to public
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Philosophy

For Wholehearted Living
Everything we do at Agthia is wholehearted.
We produce the essential and trusted food
and drink that feeds and nourishes full and
active lives, every day.
We do this here at home, across the region,
and beyond, for people from all walks of life
and all nationalities.

This wholehearted commitment drives
what we do at every stage of the food
chain – from field to fork.
We’re determined to meet the highest
food and drink quality standards, in a
sustainable way.
We value everyone we serve, and
everyone who works with us.
We do this wholeheartedly.
Because when everyone lives life to the
full, then we all live a life worth living.

2010

2015

2016 Apr

2016 Nov

Production and
distribution
agreement with
Yoplait

Acquisition of Al Bayan
Water Company in the
UAE and Oman

JV in Kuwait
to produce
Al Ain Water

Acquisition of Delta
Water Factory Company
in the KSA

Distribution agreement
with Al Foah

2012
Turkey water
company
acquisition
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Financial and Operational Highlights

2016 has been another growth year for Agthia, delivering strong
performance in an environment that was less buoyant than recent
years. All through the year, focus remained on growing our core
businesses, improving performance of the emerging categories,
and pursuing regional expansion.

Net Revenue (AED million)

Net Revenue Growth

2,012

Net Profit (AED million)

8

254

+ %

Market leader in Bottled
Water,1 Flour,2 Animal Feed,3
and Tomato Paste1 in the UAE.

Net Profit Growth

34.5 percent Gross Profit
Margin – 253 bps higher than
last year, driven by production
efficiencies, lower commodity
prices, and improved mix.

10%

+

Regional expansion in Water –
Bottling plant JV in Kuwait;
Acquisition of water arm of
Delta Marketing Company in
Jeddah, Saudi Arabia.

Net Sales

Net Profit

Economic Value Added

(AED million)

(AED million)

(AED million)

254

2,012
1,866

199

231

176

1,655
193

1,512
1,327

136

159
106

123
85

12

13

14

15

16

12

13

14

15

16

1 Volume and value share, AC Nielsen ON16 | 2 Volume share, AC Nielsen ON16 |3 Internal management estimates
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Our International Footprint

United Kingdom
Germany
Belgium
Romania
Italy
Turkey
Lebanon
Palestine

Morocco
Libya

Iraq

Jordan

Egypt

Kuwait

Bahrain

Qatar

Saudi Arabia

United Arab Emirates
Oman

Yemen

Assets
UAE-sourced products
Egypt-sourced products
Turkey-sourced products

Nigeria
Somalia

Kenya

New products all across the
portfolio: Al Ain ZERO; Water
with zero sodium; Al Ain Fresh:
Fresh juice with longer shelf life
(HPP technology); Enhancedformula animal feed products;
Specialty flour products; New
yogurt variants.

Return on Assets

Return on Equity

10%
9%

New adjacent categories:
• Ambient Croissants
• Bakery Ingredients

10%

Robust relationship with
government channels: new
Municipality outlets, Fazaa
stores (government and
corporate employees), new
products (ketchup, tissue, etc.).

Return on Net Capital Employed

15%

15%

17%

14%

9%

13%

18%

17%

15%

8%
11%
12%

12

13

14

15

16

12

13

14

15

16

12

13

14

15

16
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Execution of Strategy
A successful year laying the groundwork for 2020

2016 has been the first year of execution of our five-year strategy
to become one of the Middle East’s leading food and beverage
companies by achieving $1 billion net revenues by 2020. We have
fulfilled many of the steps on the way to achieving our 2020 Vision.

A cornerstone of this strategy is expanding
our water business beyond the UAE,
primarily into the GCC. Earlier this year, we
entered into a joint venture in Kuwait to
establish a water-bottling plant that will start
commercial operations in December 2017.

In November 2016, we signed a purchase
agreement for 100 percent of the shares
in the water business of Delta Marketing
Company, based in Jeddah, Saudi Arabia,
which also owns and produces “Al Ain”
brand water in the Kingdom.

Meanwhile, we are continuing our efforts to
find and complete a viable M&A opportunity
in 2017 in Dairy and Juice.

Core Categories
Consumer Business
Water

Agri Business
Juice

Dairy

Sizeable and growing

Feed

Complementary to juice

Flour

Expand leadership

2020 Target

$0.2-0.3bn
$0.2bn

$1.0bn

$0.5bn
2015
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Organic

Inorganic

2020

How will we win? (seven-step plan)

1

Strengthen core organically in the
UAE (Water, Flour, Animal Feed)

Progress in 2016
• Outgrew the market in all core categories,
grew share1
• Market leader with 26 percent volume share
in Water – 720 bps ahead of major competitor
1 Agthia shipped volume growth in comparison to respective category growth
rates as per ACNielsen YTD ON16 except Flour and Animal Feed, which are
BTB channels outside retail audit and management’s own estimates.

2

Strengthen UAE consumer business
with a meaningful presence in
5-gallon Water, Juice, and Dairy
through acquisition

• Al Bayan1 (5-Gallon) outperforming targets
• Dairy/Juice acquisition efforts in progress

1 Dubai-based 5-Gallon Water Company acquired by Agthia
in September 2015.

3

Expand internationally in water
through M&A and JV

• Water-bottling plant JV in Kuwait1
• 100 percent Acquisition of Delta Marketing
Company (water division) in Jeddah,
Saudi Arabia2
1 JV with Kuwait’s Al Bahar family, commercial start-up planned for December 2017.
2 SPA signed in November 2016, legal ownership transfer to be completed end
of March 2017.

4

5

6

7

Extend leadership of Agri Business
through greenfield expansion or
Animal Feed acquisition

• Following changes in subsidy regime, all
capacity increase projects were put on hold

Turn around non-core
businesses (Tomato Paste,
Frozen Vegetables, Bakery)

• Remarkable improvement: Net Revenues
grew by 30 percent, and net losses reduced
by 56 percent

Enhance performance margins
through identified levers

• High manufacturing efficiencies

Align organization and
capabilities to deliver sustainable
profitable growth

• New product development, adjacent
category entry, and other marketing and
promotional investments continue

• Work in progress for potential full or
partial divestiture and/or partnership
with interested parties

• Significant cost savings across the entire
company – process simplification,
effective commodity purchasing policy

• Organizational restructuring completed;
all critical positions filled
• New business/territory integration teams
and plans put in place
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Chairman’s Message

Despite external economic headwinds, the
Company has demonstrated yet another strong
performance in 2016, generating double-digit
profit growth underpinned by higher sales. We
have a proven strategy and interlocked initiatives
in place to maintain this growth momentum;
however, at the same time we are realistic about
the current economic environment and the
challenges that lie ahead.

Agthia’s strong performance in 2016
represents a significant milestone
on our five-year journey to become
a one-billion-dollar company.
In the UAE, whilst new highs were marked
in terms of market share in Water, we
successfully defended our market leadership
in Flour and Animal Feed against a backdrop
of significantly rationalized subsidies.
“Innovation” has been our beacon in this
endeavor all through the year, which has
seen us providing our consumers with
the first and only ZERO-SODIUM bottled
water of the GCC, in addition to new flour
products addressing various needs of our
customers. In animal feed, our research and
development teams continued to produce
customized recipes for our nation’s farmers,
developing products aimed at enhancing the
productivity of their livestock.
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We registered notable achievements in all
our other product categories, from fresh
juices to dairy to tomato paste and dates,
successfully navigating our way through an
environment that was not as buoyant as
it has been in the recent years. Besides
introducing new yogurt flavors, we
inaugurated our Al Ain fresh juices with
extended shelf life. Using unique High
Pressure Pasteurization (HPP) technology
that allows preservation of taste and
nutritional values intact for longer without
any additives or preservatives, we are not
only acknowledging our consumers’
increasing health-consciousness, but also
setting an example for the industry in
addressing growing health and wellness
needs of the nation.
I am particularly excited about our regional
expansion efforts under the leadership of
our flagship Al Ain Water brand. Early in
the year, the Company entered into a joint
venture with Kuwait’s Al-Bahar family to
establish a water-bottling plant in Kuwait.
Later in December, we acquired the water
business of Delta Marketing Company
in Saudi Arabia. Both initiatives have
put strong foundations in place to become
a true regional water leader with our
Al Ain brand, and are a testament to our
commitment to deliver sustainable growth
for our shareholders through international
expansion and acquisitions.

They are also tremendous sources of pride
for us. Al Ain Water’s roots go back to
1978 when the late HH Sheikh Zayed bin
Sultan Al Nahyan sowed the seeds of the
company. Therefore, building the first Al
Ain Water plant outside the UAE, and
entering the Saudi market for the first time
with our own Al Ain Water brand, represent
historic moments to us.
It is this same dedication to creating value
that impels us when we work together with
the Government on its food security
program. Equally, through our success
story, straight from our roots when we were
only an animal feed institution to Abu
Dhabi’s largest publicly listed food and
beverage company of today, we are setting
exceptionally high standards for Abu
Dhabi’s economic diversification goals.
The Company’s workforce has now passed
3,500 employees: talented and highly
committed individuals who are at the
cornerstones of everything we do and
achieve at Agthia. With them we are not
only working incessantly towards creating
value for our shareholders, but also are
very active in our efforts to support the
societies we are a part of.

Through our Zaheb initiative that was
launched two years ago in partnership
with Injaz UAE, we provided 1,500 Emirati
university students with bespoke workforce
readiness programs, positioning Agthia as
the unrivaled pioneer in this CSR initiative.
2016 was also the year of the highest
Emiratization record in Agthia’s history.
Of the nationalities in Agthia, UAE nationals
are in third place, and in second place in
senior management. And as a testament to
our attention not only to quantity but quality
too, our continued commitment to developing
national talent was demonstrated with the
launch of our internal Career Enhancement
Program, which aims to accelerate the
career of high-performing nationals to make
them ready to assume bigger responsibilities.
It is with this ethos of commercial
accomplishments and corporate social
responsibility legacy that we embark on the
UAE’s “Year of Giving” in 2017, being very
excited to continue to create shared value
for all stakeholders through our economic,
environmental, and social actions.

On behalf of the Board, I thank our
management and employees for their
dedication and hard work, and thank our
former CEO for his service to the Company.
I also express my sincere gratitude to
HH Sheikh Khalifa Bin Zayed Al Nahyan,
President of the UAE and Supreme
Commander of the UAE Armed Forces,
and HH General Sheikh Mohammed Bin
Zayed Al Nahyan, Crown Prince of Abu
Dhabi, Deputy Supreme Commander of the
UAE Armed Forces, and Chairman of the
Abu Dhabi Executive Council. They have
given the Company every support in its
journey to serve all citizens.
I trust you will continue to walk together
with us as we advance towards our goals,
God willing.

Eng Dhafer Ayed Al Ahbabi
Chairman
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Board of Directors

1

2

3

HE Eng Dhafer Ayed
Al Ahbabi

HE Rashed Hamad
Al Dhaheri

HE Salem Sultan
Al Dhaheri

Chairman

Vice Chairman

Member

Advisor, Senaat General Holding
Corporation

Deputy Director, Indexed
Funds Department, Abu Dhabi
Investment Authority

Deputy Director – Internal Audit,
Abu Dhabi Investment Authority

Chairman, Al Foah
Chairman, Industrialist Union
Society, UAE
Member of the Board of Trustees,
Institute of Applied Technology

Board Member, LA Holdings
(Luxembourg) S.A.

Board Member, Abu Dhabi
National Energy Company
PJSC (TAQA)
Board Member, Al Etihad
Credit Bureau
Board Member, Senaat General
Holding Corporation
Board Member, Al Hilal Bank
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1

4

5

6

3

4

6
7

7

HE Amna Obaid
Al Zaabi

HE Mohamed Saif
Al Suwaidi

HE Saif Saeed
Ghobash

HE Khamis Mohamed
Buharoon Al Shamsi

Member

Member

Member

Member

Manager, Portfolio Management,
Senaat General Holding Corporation

Director General, Abu Dhabi Fund
for Development

Director General, Abu Dhabi
Tourism and Cultural Authority

Chairman, Abu Dhabi National
Takaful Co. PSC

Chairman, Al Ain Farms for
Livestock Production

Board Member, Emirates
Palace Company

Chairman, Abu Dhabi
Security LLC

Vice Chairman, Arab Bank for
Investment and Foreign Trade

Board Member, Abu Dhabi
Motorsports Management

Board Member, Abu Dhabi
Islamic Bank

Board Member, First Gulf
Bank PJSC

Board Member, Abu Dhabi
National Exhibition Centre

Board Member, Etihad
Capital PJSC

Board Member, Raysut Cement
Company SAOG

Board Member, Al Dhafra
Insurance Company PSC

Board Member, Awad Capital Ltd.

Board Member, DP World

Board Member, Naeem Holding
Company, Egypt

Board Member, Compañia
Española de Petróleos (CEPSA)
Board Member, Emirates
Red Crescent
Board Member, Food Security
Center, Abu Dhabi
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CEO’s Message

Agthia recorded another year of strong growth in 2016, making solid
progress on our strategic, operational, and financial objectives. While
profit grew by 10 percent to AED 254 million, Group revenues passed
the AED 2 billion mark with 8 percent growth over last year. We not
only launched new innovative products to stay ahead of the curve in
responding to the changing needs of our consumers and customers,
but also made them available and visible across the UAE , more strongly
than ever in the history of our company, cementing our leading market
positions in our core categories.

Water has been the engine of growth,
reinforcing its volume and value share
leadership in the UAE, where underlying
market growth rates stayed well short
of those of recent years. In the bottled
water segment, the launch of Al Ain
ZERO, a sodium-free product, solidified
Agthia’s reputation as a pioneering,
high-quality producer, and contributed
significantly to Al Ain Water’s leading
position in the UAE water market. Al
Bayan, the Dubai-based 5-gallon-water
company that we acquired late in 2015,
has outperformed our expectations
in its first full year of operations under
Agthia’s umbrella.
While Agthia made a significant impact
on the water market in the UAE, we also
made progress in our regional expansion
ambitions. Our joint venture agreement
with Kuwait’s Al Bahar family to establish
a water-bottling plant there, and the
acquisition of the water business of Delta
Marketing Company in Saudi Arabia,
are individually and collectively
transformative initiatives on the way to
becoming a truly regional leader in water.
I cannot overemphasize the importance
of becoming the region-wide trademark
owner of Al Ain as a water brand, as a
result of the Saudi acquisition.
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In Juices, the launch of Al Ain freshly
squeezed juices in the retail channel, with
a longer shelf life without any additives or
preservatives, helped us protect our revenues
in a market which has seen one of the
largest contractions in 2016. Capri-Sun,
on the other hand, had to face additional
headwinds, mainly because of new school
regulations that required time to respond
with new products.
It has been a very good year for Yoplait
in not only Fruit and Kids’ Yogurt, which
are our focus segments, but in the Plain
segment too, owing to revamped distribution
of plain yogurt in food service outlets with a
new 10kg product. Compounded with new
flavors and advertising campaigns including
strong digital marketing, Yoplait became the
second brand in the value-added segment
of the yogurt category at the end of 2016.
What characterized 2016 for Flour and
Animal Feed has been our fast and
effective action in defending our brands
and market shares in response to the
changes in the subsidy regime effective
from July 2016 (in place in Abu Dhabi
since 2007). This has helped us first
contain, and then minimize, the adverse
financial consequences of subsidy
rationalization on our businesses.

It was not an easy task; it required thinking
out of the box and shifting many paradigms
of long years of practices, both by us
internally and by our customers externally.
It required us to be innovative not only in
our product offerings, but also in the ways
we offer them to our customers, in order
to protect our volumes with minimum
profitability impact.
More importantly, it impelled us to look
around and identify value-adding
propositions like bakery ingredients and
animal feed premixes in these mostly
commoditized businesses. Having more
than six months under our belts now,
I can confidently say that we have adapted
very well to the new environment with
minimum disruption to the underlying
operational and financial fundamentals
of these two very important businesses.
The new strategy of bundling our smaller
businesses together (Tomato Paste and
Frozen Vegetables including Egypt, and
Bakery, Dates, and other convenience
products) under dedicated management bore
fruit. Our “emerging businesses”, as we call
them internally, grew 30 percent versus the
same period last year, with combined losses
diminishing by more than half to single-digit
million dirhams, despite the incrementally
adverse impact of an unprecedented
currency devaluation in Egypt.

Our operational and financial achievements
in 2016 are testament to the strength of our
strategy, and we believe that our direction
of travel will continue to create shareholder
value in the coming years. At this point I
would like to emphasize two very important
factors that I believe are quintessential to
ensure sustainable value creation: innovative
spirit and high-caliber people. I will focus
attention on further developing both of these,
as part of our endeavor to add value at every
stage of everything we do at Agthia, in an
effective, efficient, and sustainable manner.
Steering Agthia towards becoming the
leading food and beverage company in the
region by 2020 is a privilege, and at the
same time a big responsibility. This is
particularly true in the current economic and
political canvas prevailing all around the
region and in the world, not only fostering
uncertainty but also furnishing us with new
and stronger challenges to navigate around.
We are, however, in an excellent position to
face and beat these challenges owing to our
clear vision and dedicated people.

I would like to conclude my words by
thanking all my colleagues at Agthia for their
hard work in making 2016 another strong
year. I look forward to working together,
driving our company to greater successes
in the coming years. I would also like to
express my sincere thanks to the members
of Agthia’s Board of Directors, our customers
and consumers, our shareholders, and wider
investment community for their support
and contributions.

Tariq Al Wahedi
Acting Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Operating Officer
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Executive Committee

1

2

3

Tariq Aziz

Tariq Al Wahedi

Fatih Yeldan

Senior Vice President
IT & Business Solutions;
Emerging Businesses

Acting Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Operating Officer

Chief Financial Officer

British

Emirati

Turkish

Joined Agthia Group
in February 2007

Joined Agthia Group
in September 2015

Joined Agthia Group
in November 2008

Previous posts include: Associate
Finance Director, P&G, UK

Previous posts include: Senior
Vice President – Projects &
Business Development, Senaat
General Holding Corporation, UAE

Previous posts include: Finance
Director, Agri Business, Agthia
Group PJSC

Group Finance Manager, The
Gillette Company, UK, Africa,
Middle East & Eastern Regions
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Senior Vice President –
Petrochemicals, Abu Dhabi Basic
Industries Corporation, UAE

Financial Director, P&G, Blades
and Razors Manufacturing &
Packaging Operations, Poland
Regional Financial Director,
The Gillette Company, Turkey
& Mediterranean Markets

1
2

4

5

6

5

3
4

7
6

7

Toufic El Chaar

Khalid Ahmed

Fasahat Beg

Ted Thorbjornsen

Senior Vice President
Human Capital and
Organization Development

Vice-President
Public Affairs

Executive Vice President
Water, Beverages, and Dairy

Senior Vice President Strategy

Lebanese

Emirati

Canadian

Norwegian

Joined Agthia Group
in January 2008

Joined Agthia Group
in May 2004

Joined Agthia Group
in July 2006

Joined Agthia Group
in January 2016

Previous posts include:
Vice President HR &
Organization Development,
Al Homaizi Group, Kuwait

Previous posts include: Group
Training & Development Manager,
Agthia Group, UAE

Previous posts include:
Commercial Director,
SE Asia Food & Snacks,
Pepsico International

Previous posts include:
Co-Founder & Managing Director,
Boston Analytics, US

Group HR Director, SITA,
Europe, Middle East & Africa,
based in Rome & Geneva

Human Resources & Admin
Manager, Grand Mills for Flour
& Feed, UAE

Marketing & Sales Director,
JT International SA, Czech
& Slovak Republics

Business Unit Head, Keithley
Instruments, US
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Operational Review
Water, Beverages, and Dairy

Bolstered by Water, the WBD Unit recorded AED 766 million revenues, growing
18 percent over last year. New products, relentless focus on product distribution,
and effective marketing support are keys to the incremental revenues, whereas
continuous cost efficiencies combined with lower raw material prices have been
main drivers of higher profitability.

Net Revenue
(AED)

766m

Net Revenue
Growth

+18%
Net Profit
(AED)

Net Profit
Growth

+34%
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129m

Operational Review (continued)
Water

Net Revenue
(AED)

653m

+20%

Net Profit
(AED)

132m

+27%

The Water category consists of bottled and 5-gallon water under the Al Ain Water, Alpin,
Al Bayan, and Ice Crystal brands. Al Ain Water is the flagship product of the Company, and
a market leader in the UAE by more than 700 bps distance from the nearest competitor.
The UAE bottled water market continued
to grow in 2016, but at a slower pace
than in recent years. In this environment
we outgrew the underlying category, as
a result of distribution gains across the
UAE, concentrated efforts to strengthen
our range and availability in Municipality
outlets, continuous investment behind
brand building, new product launches,
and effective tactical in-market activities.
Earlier in the year, we rolled out the
“Essentials for Life” campaign, highlighting
Al Ain Water’s balanced mineral
composition. In April, the second highspeed bottling line began production,
increasing our bottling capacity in the
UAE by 40 percent.

Al Ain ZERO was introduced late in August,
a breakthrough sodium-free bottled water
that reflects Agthia’s commitment to be
in constant touch with evolving consumer
needs and remain ahead of the curve.
Al Ain Water Sports Cap was launched
in November in the Municipality outlets.
Shipments and revenues of Alpin, the
natural mineral water produced in our
own manufacturing facilities in Turkey and
distributed in the UAE, have more than
doubled (123 percent higher) versus the
same period last year.
Al Bayan 5-gallon and bottled water
continue to outperform pre-acquisition
targets. With identified business synergies
already realized, like-for-like revenues grew
by 13 percent, bolstered by a doubling Al
Bayan PET business especially in lower
traditional trade.

Al Ain ZERO has been a phenomenal success,
reaching 4 percent market share in a matter of
5 months following its launch in August 2016.

Bottled Water (Al Ain)

4%
26%

Number 1 in UAE at 26 percent
volume market share
Al Ain ZERO at 4 percent volume
market share
(Source: AC Nielsen)
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Operational Review (continued)
Beverages

Net Revenue
(AED)

81m

Net Profit
(AED)

Flat

4m

-10%

The Beverages category, consisting of Capri-Sun fruit juices and Al Ain Fresh juices, posted net
revenues of AED 81 million, and remained flat versus a year ago in a declining juice category.

Capri-Sun experienced a challenging year.
New school regulations, in addition to
downsized spending levels by consumers,
slowed the brand’s growth momentum
despite new product launches and
continued promotional support, resulting
in a 2 percent drop in net revenues
versus previous year.
The year has seen the introduction of
Capri-Sun Big Pouch in April with a
re-sealable cap for consumers to enjoy
refreshment on the go, and Capri-Sun Fruit
Crush with 100 percent juice content in
schools in Dubai, Sharjah, and the Northern
Emirates in September. Al Ain freshly
squeezed juices were launched in the retail
channel in July 2016 with a longer shelf
life, complementing an already existing
3-day shelf life portfolio in the institutional
and HORECA channels.

Juice Drinks Single Serve
(Capri-Sun)
10%

Number 3 in UAE at 10 percent
volume market share
(Source: AC Nielsen)
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Using unique High Pressure Pasteurization
(HPP) technology, which allows preservation
of taste and nutritional values intact for
longer shelf life without any additives or
preservatives, we introduced five flavors
in retail trade channels.
The marginal decline in profit (AED 0.4
million) is due to initial trade spend behind
Al Ain Fresh during the launch period
without full year revenue benefits.
Al Ain fresh juices were launched in the retail
channel with a longer shelf life.

Operational Review (continued)
Dairy

Net Revenue
(AED)

33m

+29%

Net Profit
(AED)

-7m

+41%

The Dairy category, under the Yoplait brand mainly in the fruit and kids’ yogurt segments,
posted AED 33 million net revenue, growing 29 percent year-on-year.

Yoplait contributed strongly to the Group’s
growth in 2016. The introduction of new
flavors and products, activation of new
advertising campaigns including digital
marketing, and revamped distribution of
plain yogurt in food service outlets with a
new 10kg product, brought a performance
far ahead of a declining yogurt category.

In the Fruit Yogurt segment, Yoplait reached
15.7 percent volume share as per AC
Nielsen ON16 retail audit, and became
the second brand following Activia.
Meanwhile, Petit Filous maintained its
strong value share leadership position
in the Kids’ Yogurt segment, reaching 49.4
percent share as per AC Nielsen ON16 audit.
Larger scale of business combined with
lower milk powder prices resulted in a
720 bps higher gross profit margin than
a year ago (32 percent versus 25 percent).
Accordingly, net loss decreased by 41
percent to AED 7 million.

Petit Filous successfully defends value
market share leadership.

Fruit Yogurt and Kids’ Yogurt
(Yoplait and Petit Filous)

49%

16%

Number 2 in UAE at 16 percent
volume market share
Number 1 in UAE at 49 percent
value market share
(Source: AC Nielsen)
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Operational Review
Flour and Animal Feed

Flour and Animal Feed constitute Agthia’s “Agri” Unit, which still contributes 55
percent and 65 percent of Group revenues and profit, respectively. Although
largely commoditized with limited growth potential, both businesses will remain
indispensable pillars of Agthia as standard bearers of the late HH Sheikh Zayed
bin Sultan Al Nahyan, who established the “Flour Mills and Animal Feed Company”
back in 1978.

Net Revenue
(AED)

1,103m

Net Revenue
Growth

Flat

Net Profit
Growth

+5%
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Net Profit
(AED)

237m

Operational Review (continued)
Flour

Net Revenue
(AED)

434m

+2%

Net Profit
(AED)

164m

+14%

Our capability and agility to first understand and then to respond to our customers’ new
needs and expectations in a post-subsidy environment has been the key to protecting
our market share and revenues.
Subsidy rationalization was announced
at the end of the half-year, removing
subsidies in full in selected sales channels
(Retail, Trading, and Catering) from
September 1, 2016. On the other hand,
in our largest sales channel, Bakeries,
subsidies remain intact until June 30,
2017, when they will be reduced by half,
to be fully withdrawn on June 30, 2018.
Our response has accordingly varied across
our channels. In the Retail trade, where
subsidized prices were at half of the free
market prices, we doubled our prices.

In Bakeries, we continued to introduce
new specialty products, like Tandoor bread
and all-baking flour, and stepped up our
programs for new customer acquisitions
especially in the Northern Emirates.
Although our gross profit margin was
adversely affected by partial withdrawal of
subsidies and the impact of our subsequent
actions to defend volume, at 46 percent it
was still 423 basis points higher than last
year, mainly due to our success in procuring
wheat at lower cost all through 2016.

Yeast and Bread Improver – first products to enter
adjacent ‘Bakery Ingredients’ category.

Protecting our volume in the much larger
Trading and Catering channels was our
absolute priority over profitability. Hence,
instead of increasing our prices to nonsubsidized levels, we developed and
launched price fighter value range products,
which provided us with strong leverage
to defend our market share and minimize
loss of volume.

Retail Flour

21%

31%

Number 1 in UAE at 31 percent volume
market share
Number 2 in UAE at 21 percent
value market share
(Source: AC Nielsen) MAT 2016
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Operational Review (continued)
Animal Feed

Net Revenue
(AED)

669m

+2%

Net Profit
(AED)

74m

-12%

The scope of subsidy change was wider, and implementation
was earlier in Animal Feed.

From July 1, 2016 the subsidy was
withdrawn in Municipality and Distributor
channels, remaining in place only for the
Commercial Farms.

It was very well accepted by our farmers,
reflected by their high level of satisfaction,
and we plan to expand these stores to other
remote areas in 2017.

We increased our prices in the affected
channels in line with market prices. In order
to protect volume, we launched a plethora
of new products in record time, including a
price fighter value range in both small and
large animal segments, supported by strong
customer communication around Agrivita’s
features and benefits.

Despite all these measures, we lost around
15 percent of our monthly average volume,
partly to competition and partly because
many small farms (Ezba) could not survive
a post-subsidy environment.

Our continuous R&D efforts behind
developing differentiated products with cost
efficiencies delivered other new products
during the year, with enhanced immunity
and productivity features for various animals
to cater for the needs of our nation’s farmers.
It was not only with our products that we
catered for the needs of our customers.
In an effort to create convenience for our
remote farmers, and build brand loyalty,
we opened two “Agthia” stores, enabling
direct Agrivita sales to small farmers.
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Following the subsidy program change,
management put all capacity expansion
and capital expenditure projects on hold,
anticipating this volume loss.
Looking ahead, we are optimistic about
generating new revenue streams in feed
segments where we are not strong or present
at all today. One example is our joint venture
partnership in the UAE with Anderson
Hay & Grain Co., Inc., a leading US-based
exporter of hay and straw products, opening
us a wide window of opportunity to become
a leading supplier of our nation’s and the
region’s premium forage.

Balanced nutrition for lambs.

Operational Review
Emerging Businesses

In an effort to turn around our Tomato Paste, Frozen Vegetables, and Bakery
businesses faster, we carved them out of their previous management structures,
and combined them under Emerging Businesses. The strategy proved to be
right: while combined revenues grew by 30 percent, losses diminished by
56 percent, reducing to low single-digit million dirham figures.

Net Revenue
(AED)

143m

Net Revenue
Growth

+30%
Net Profit
(AED)

Net Profit
Growth

+56%

-4m
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Operational Review (continued)
Emerging Businesses

Our strategic commitment to our Board and shareholders related to the future of
these businesses still holds; as we show successful progress in improving their financial
performance, we are also evaluating potential divestment options, including partnerships.
In the UAE, Al Ain Tomato Paste and
Frozen Vegetables, and Pure Natural
convenience products for the Municipality
outlets, have recorded an outstanding
performance, growing 30 percent over last
year. Brand-new packaging for Al Ain
Frozen Vegetables and Tomato Paste, and
new Pure Natural products such as Instant
Coffee, Tomato Ketchup, Roasted Coffee,
Pasta Corni, and new variants of Tissue in
the Municipalities, have all contributed
to this result.
“Date Crown” dates recorded AED 16 million
revenues. Since taking over distribution, we
have given the brand a totally new spin,
enhancing its availability, visibility, and
awareness in the retail trade.
Efforts to establish a solid Bakery business
base have continued all through the year.
We launched our Grand Baker “ambient
croissant line” in the first quarter of the year,
and since then have introduced a variety of
new SKUs in the retail trade.
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In Frozen Bakery, in addition to ongoing
business with Monty’s Bakehouse franchise
in the airline catering industry, we stepped
into the Bakery channel with the introduction
of a range of frozen croissants.
It has been another tough year in Egypt. In
addition to a season with bad crops, a more
than 100 percent devaluation closer to the
end of the year took its toll on our top and
bottom lines, both of which posted declining
results versus last year.
Our strategic commitment to our Board
and shareholders related to the future
of these businesses still holds; as we
show successful progress in improving
their financial performance, we are also
evaluating potential divestment options,
including partnerships.

Entering ambient bakery segment brought scale
to the Bakery business using existing capacity thus
reducing absorption-driven losses.

Corporate Social Responsibility

In 2016, we revisited and subsequently redefined our approach to Corporate
Social Responsibility, centered on the idea of creating “shared value” through
driving change towards sustainability.

Embedding sustainability into the core of
our business operations to produce an
overall positive impact on business
and society, and to create shared value for
all of our stakeholders through economic,
environmental, and social actions, we
reorganized our efforts under four main
areas: Community, Workplace, Nutrition
& Well-being, and Environment &
Sustainability. Comprising multiple chapters,
each area covers specific goals that we are
aspiring to accomplish by 2020.

Chapter: Workplace Rights

Area 1:

Chapter: Workplace Health,
Safety, and Security

Community
Chapter: Sustainable Community
We believe that the heart of the shared value
concept rests on the ability of a company to
create private value for itself, which in turn
creates public value for society. Accordingly,
we aspire to give back at least 1 percent of
the Company’s operating income annually to
create shared prosperity through community
and institutional partnerships.
Area 2:

Workplace
Chapter: Workplace Diversity
Agthia believes in the value of diversity,
mirroring the rich, multi-cultural variety of
the marketplaces we serve. Additionally, in
order to contribute to the UAE government’s
long-term self-sufficiency objectives, we
invest in Emirati talent development, both
internally by giving UAE nationals equal
work opportunities at Agthia, and externally
by pioneering initiatives to develop workforce
readiness skills of Emirati youth.

In our Company, and across our entire
value chain, we regard human rights as
fundamental to our sustainability, and
accordingly, we are committed to ensuring
that people are treated with dignity and
respect. The Company supports the United
Nations Universal Declaration of Human
Rights, and our policies are guided by
ten principles within four important areas:
Human Rights, Labor Rights, Environment,
and Anti-Corruption.

The Company is committed to ensuring
that all employees have a right to be treated
fairly and with dignity in a workplace
that is free from violence, harassment,
discrimination, and other disruptive
conditions. Equally, we are committed to
providing a safe and healthy workplace by
complying with applicable safety and health
laws, regulations, and internal policies.
Area 3:

Nutrition and
Well-being
Chapter: Healthy Food & Beverage
The Company aims to protect health and
nutrition in the UAE and beyond in a variety
of ways, from preventing food-borne
illnesses to ensuring availability of food for
all in need. We are committed to enhancing
people’s lives by providing healthy and
nourishing products.
Chapter: Active & Responsible Lifestyle
By promoting an active lifestyle, we
encourage health and wellness in the
communities we serve as an integral
part of our business, with an end goal
of inspiring wholehearted living.

Area 4:

Environment and
Sustainability
Chapter: Water Stewardship
We are primarily a water company, and we
are very much aware of the environmental
sustainability responsibilities we carry as a
leading company in the region. Accordingly,
we continuously search to identify and
capture ways to maximize water efficiency in
our production processes, and are committed
to help address the challenges surrounding
renewable water supplies in the region.
Chapter: Climate Protection & Sustainable
Packaging and Sourcing
We are increasingly mindful of our
environmental footprint, making concrete
efforts in existing operations and factoring
in environmental best practices in new
initiatives. We are also aware that achieving
results in this area ultimately requires a
system of multiple parties, ranging from
public and private institutions to people
and technologies, all working together.
To address this, we devise multi-faceted
programs to engage our consumers, the
government, and our supply-chain partners
in our future endeavors.
Chapter: Sustainable Agriculture
More than 70 percent of Agthia’s
procurement expenses goes to agricultural
ingredients, mainly to grains. It is therefore
business-critical for us to approach
agricultural environment with a long-term
sustainability aim, in a wider scope
encompassing growers and millers to breeders
and farmers, from agricultural experts to
NGOs and universities, in order to promote
and help achieve sustainable growing.
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Corporate Governance

Agthia is committed to maintaining the highest standards of business conduct and corporate
governance, which we believe are essential to running our business efficiently, driving
sustained shareholder value, and maintaining Agthia’s integrity in the marketplace. Our
Board of Directors and management recognize the importance of corporate governance
practices that help ensure an environment of effective oversight and strong accountability.
Agthia Group (the Group) complies with
the requirements of the “Chairman of
Authority’s Board of Directors” Resolution
No. 7 of 2016 concerning the Standards
of Institutional Discipline and Governance
of Public Shareholding Companies’
(Resolution 7). This report gives an overview
of the Group’s corporate governance systems
and procedures as of December 31, 2016
and has been filed with Securities and
Commodities Authority (SCA), and posted

on the Abu Dhabi Exchange (ADX) website
and the Group’s website.
The Board is fully committed to consistently
protecting the interests of all shareholders
through the application of high standards of
corporate governance. As an acknowledgment
of our strong governance principles and
structures, Capital Finance International (CFI),
United Kingdom, ranked Agthia as the 2016
Corporate Governance winner in the United
Arab Emirates for the third year in a row.

Group Governance Structure
Shareholders
Board of Directors
Audit Committee
Internal
Control
Department

Company Secretary

Nomination and Bonuses Committee

Executive Committee
Insider Trading
Management
Committee

Implementation of Corporate
Governance Principles
Effectively applied corporate governance
guidelines are the foundation of business
integrity, and support management’s
commitment to deliver value to shareholders
through sustainable business results. The
Group maintains high levels of transparency,
accountability, which includes adopting and
monitoring appropriate corporate strategies,
objectives, and procedures that comply with
its legal and ethical responsibilities.
The Group’s Corporate Governance Manual is
currently being updated and reviewed by the
Board to reflect the requirements of Resolution
7. It determines the structures and processes
by which the Group is controlled through its
Board and the guiding governance principles
followed by the Group. The manual clarifies
the roles and responsibilities of all stakeholders
involved in governance processes, including
the General Assembly of Shareholders, the
Board of Directors including the Chairman of
the Board and Board Committees, the Chief
Executive Officer, the Executive Management,
relevant Management Committees, Internal
Audit, External Audit, Company Secretary,
and other stakeholders.
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• Business Continuity Management Policy
to implement a Business Continuity
Management System, compliant with
international and local standards, to improve
the overall business resilience of the Group.
• Information Security Policy to underscore
Agthia’s commitment and support towards
the management of information security
at Agthia.
• Whistleblowing Policy to provide employees
a mechanism to confidentially report
any violations of the Code of Business
Conduct, internal policies and procedures,
or applicable laws and regulations.
Dealing in Company Securities

The Board of Directors

Chief Executive Officer

Risk
Management
Committee

• Risk Management Policy to promote
adequate and consistent risk management
practices as well as a structured process
for identifying, assessing, prioritizing,
managing, and reporting material risks
across the Group.

None of the Board Members or their direct
family members has traded in the Company’s
shares during 2016.

Conduct
and Values
Committee

External
Audit

• Dividend Distribution Policy to define the
Group’s position on appropriation of profit
and declaration/distribution of dividend.

Commodity
Risk Management
Committee

Business Continuity
Management
Committee

The Board has established and approved
several Group policies and guidelines for
achieving robust corporate governance
standards. Following are the pertinent
policies in this regard:
• Code of Business Conduct to guide the
conduct of Directors and Employees and
prevent any influence on the employees’
independence and objectivity, addressing
matters such as conflict of interest and
integrity, gifts, and confidentiality.
• An appropriate delegation of authority
to ensure efficient and effective decision
making which balances empowerment
against controls.
• Investor Relations Policy to inform
shareholders and stakeholders of how
the Group intends to keep them aware
of material developments, as well as to
provide a framework of processes upon
which Agthia can successfully implement
its Investor Relations Program.
• Trading in Group Shares Policy to ensure
that Directors and Employees do not make
improper use of price-sensitive information,
gained through their positions in the Group.

The Board of Directors’ role is to represent
the shareholders and be accountable to
them for creating and delivering sustainable
value through the effective governance of
the business. It is the Board’s responsibility
to ensure that effective management is in
place to implement the Group’s strategy.
The Board is the primary decision-making
body for all matters that are considered to
be material to the Group. The Board has a
rolling agenda to ensure that the key areas
remain in focus throughout the year.
Board Structure and Composition
The present Board of Directors was elected at
the Annual General Meeting held on April 28,
2014 for a term of three years. The Board
currently has seven members, comprising an
Independent Non-Executive Chairman and
six Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The Group supports the inclusion and
participation of women in business and
believes that diversity contributes to the
quality and effectiveness of Board decisions.
Our shareholders also support such measures
and have demonstrated their commitment to
diversity in their nominations. We are proud to
have female representation of 14.3 percent,
with one female member on the Board.

The Board ensures, on an ongoing basis,
that Directors possess the required skills,
knowledge, and experience necessary to
fulfill their obligations. Composition of the
current Board of Directors:
Board of Directors:
HE Eng Dhafer Ayed Al Ahbabi
Chairman
Non-Executive, Independent
Director since: April 2014
Qualifications:
Bachelor in Chemical and
Petroleum Engineering
Current Positions:
Advisor, Senaat General Holding Corporation
Chairman, Al Foah

HE Khamis Mohamed Buharoon Al Shamsi

HE Saif Saeed Ghobash

Member
Non-Executive, Independent

Member
Non-Executive, Independent

Director since: April 2014

Director since: April 2014

Qualifications:
Bachelor in Accounting and
Business Administration

Qualifications:
Executive Master of Business Administration

Current Positions:
Chairman, Abu Dhabi National Takaful Co. PSC
Chairman, Abu Dhabi Security LLC

Current Positions:
Director General, Abu Dhabi Tourism and
Cultural Authority

Board Member, Abu Dhabi Islamic Bank

Board Member, Emirates Palace Company

Board Member, Etihad Capital PJSC

Board Member, Abu Dhabi
Motorsports Management

Bachelor of Science in Economics (USA)

Board Member, Awad Capital Ltd.
Board Member, Naeem Holding
Company, Egypt

Board Member, Abu Dhabi National
Exhibition Centre

Chairman, Industrialist Union Society, UAE

HE Salem Sultan Al Dhaheri

Board Member, Al Dhafra Insurance
Company PSC

Member of the Board of Trustees, Institute
of Applied Technology

Member
Non-Executive, Independent

HE Amna Obaid Al Zaabi

HE Rashed Hamad Al Dhaheri
Vice Chairman
Non-Executive, Independent
Director since: April 2014
Qualifications:
Bachelor of Arts (Economics) (USA)
Current Positions:
Deputy Director, Indexed Funds Department,
Abu Dhabi Investment Authority

Member
Non-Executive, Independent

Director since: June 30, 2015
Qualifications:
Certified Public Accountant

Director since: April 2014

Current Positions:
Deputy Director - Internal Audit, Abu Dhabi
Investment Authority
Board Member, Abu Dhabi National Energy
Company PJSC (TAQA)
Board Member, Al Etihad Credit Bureau

Board Member, LA Holdings (Luxembourg) S.A.

Board Member, Senaat General
Holding Corporation

HE Mohamed Saif Al Suwaidi

Board Member, Al Hilal Bank

Member
Non-Executive, Independent
Director since: April 2014

Qualifications:
Bachelor of Science in Business
(major in Finance) (UAE)
Current Position:
Manager, Portfolio Management, Senaat
General Holding Corporation

Directors’ Fees and Remuneration

Qualifications:
Bachelor of Science in Business
Administration (USA)

Remuneration of the Group’s Board of Directors is determined in accordance with the
provisions of the Group’s Articles of Association. The Directors’ fee is a fixed fee and
is not linked to meeting attendance. Directors’ fees of AED 1.4 million relating to 2015
were approved at the General Assembly held in 2016, and thereafter paid in 2016.

Current Positions:
Director General, Abu Dhabi Fund
for Development

Total Directors’ fees of AED 1.4 million relating to 2016, towards Board of Directors’, Audit,
and Nomination & Remuneration Committee Members’ fees, are to be paid in 2017 subject
to shareholder approval. No bonus was proposed for the Directors relating to 2016.

Chairman, Al Ain Farms for
Livestock Production
Vice Chairman, Arab Bank for Investment
and Foreign Trade

Board/Board Committee Member

Board
Directors’
Board Committee Membership fees in AED

Number of
Board Committee
meetings Members’
attended fees in AED

Number of
Committee
meetings
attended

Board Member, First Gulf Bank PJSC

HE Eng Dhafer Ayed Al Ahbabi –
Chairman
–

150,000

6

0

0

Board Member, Raysut Cement
Company SAOG

HE Rashed Hamad Al Dhaheri –
Vice-Chairman
Audit Committee

150,000

5

50,000

4

Board Member, DP World

HE Mohamed Saif Al Suwaidi

Board Member, Compañia Española de
Petróleos (CEPSA)

Nomination &
Remuneration Committee 150,000

4

50,000

4

HE Khamis Mohamed Buharoon Nomination &
Al Shamsi
Remuneration Committee 150,000

6

50,000

4

Board Member, Emirates Red Crescent

HE Salem Sultan Al Dhaheri

Audit Committee

6

50,000

6

Board Member, Food Security Center,
Abu Dhabi

HE Saif Saeed Ghobash

Nomination &
Remuneration Committee 150,000

5

50,000

3

HE Amna Obaid Al Zaabi

Audit Committee

150,000

6

50,000

6

Mr. Osama Al Sheleh*

Audit Committee

0

–

50,000

4

150,000

* Mr. Osama Al Sheleh is a fourth member of the Audit Committee with relevant financial and accounting expertise
and not a Board member.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

During the year, four Nomination and
Bonuses Committee meetings were held:

Board Meetings
During 2016, six Board of Directors meetings were held.
Board Member

17-Feb

28-Feb

P

P

HE Eng Dhafer Ayed Al Ahbabi –
Chairman

24-Mar 08-May

P

P

01-Nov

P (By Proxy)

P

HE Mohamed Saif
Al Suwaidi – Chairman
HE Khamis Mohamed
Buharoon Al Shamsi
HE Saif Saeed Ghobash

HE Rashed Hamad Al Dhaheri –
Vice Chairman

P

A

P

P

P

P

HE Mohamed Saif Al Suwaidi

A

P

P

P

A

P

HE Khamis Mohamed Buharoon
Al Shamsi

P

P

P

P

P (By Phone)

P (By Proxy)

P

P

A

P (By Proxy) P (By Proxy)

HE Salem Sultan Al Dhaheri

P

P

P

P

P

P

HE Amna Obaid Al Zaabi

P

P

P

P

P

P

HE Saif Saeed Ghobash

P

P: Present, A: Apologies sent/leave of absence was granted to members not attending the meeting(s).

Board Effectiveness Evaluation

Roles and Responsibilities

An evaluation to assess the performance of the
Board as a whole, its committees, and that of
the individual directors is conducted annually,
with the aim of improving the effectiveness
of the Board, its members and committees,
and the performance of the Group.

The key objective of the Nomination and
Bonuses Committee is to assist the Board
in fulfilling its responsibilities regarding
the following:

Company Secretary
The Company Secretary is the focal point for
communication with the Board of Directors
and senior management, and plays a key role
in the administration of important corporate
governance matters. Our Company Secretary,
Mr. Namir El Aridi, was appointed by the
Board and reports to the Board in relation
to secretarial responsibilities. He is also the
Group’s Vice President, Legal Affairs, and
has the following qualifications:
Qualifications:
Bachelor of Laws (LLB)
Certificate in Board Secretarial Practice
Board Committees
The Board has established two Board
Committees to assist the Board in discharging
its responsibilities. The Committees operate
in line with their respective charters approved
by the Board. The charters set out their
roles, responsibilities, scope of authority,
composition, and procedures for reporting
to the Board.
Nomination and Bonuses Committee
The Nomination and Bonuses Committee
is responsible for the review of the Group’s
HR framework and compensation programs.
The Committee makes recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration, allowances,
and terms of service of the Group’s senior
executives to ensure they are fairly rewarded
for their individual contribution to the Group.
All the three Committee members are
Independent Non-Executive Directors of
the Board.
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Nomination and Bonuses
Committee Member

31-Jul

• Organizing and follow-up of the nomination
procedure related to the Board of Directors’
election and membership.
• Ensuring that Independent Non-Executive
Directors remain independent on a
continuous basis and at all times.
• Reviewing the potential for conflicts of
interest and judgment, and that there
are appropriate safeguards against
such conflicts.
• Formulation and annual review of
remuneration, benefits, incentives of the
CEO and senior executives, and that the
remuneration and benefits given to senior
management are reasonable and in line
with the Group’s performance.
• Consideration and putting forward for
Board approval proposals on remuneration
adjustments, performance bonus, long-term
incentives etc.
• Driving the performance-based remuneration
culture within the Group through annual
performance review of the Group’s senior
executives and succession planning.
• Determination of the Group’s needs
for qualified staff at the level of senior
executives and the basis of selection.
• Reviewing the remuneration policy and
training policy to encourage development
and growth of female employees in
the Group.
• Reporting to the Board on matters
that in the Committee’s opinion
require action or improvement, and
providing recommendations.
• While it is the Committee’s responsibility
to exercise independent judgment, it
does request advice from management
and third-party independent sources as
appropriate, to ensure that its decisions
are fully informed given the internal and
external environment.

28
Feb

24
Mar

08
May

01
Nov

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

A

P

P: Present, A: Apologies sent/leave of absence was
granted to members not attending the meeting(s).

Total fee for the year 2016 is AED 0.15
million (2015: AED 0.15 million).
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee, appointed by the Board
of Directors, consisted of four members. Three
members were Independent Non-Executive
Directors, and the Committee included a
fourth member with relevant financial and
accounting expertise.
Roles and Responsibilities
The Audit Committee maintains free and
open communication between the external
auditors, internal auditors, and senior
management. The responsibilities of the
Audit Committee include:
• Monitoring the integrity of the financial
statements of the Group and any formal
announcements relating to the Group’s
financial performance, as well as reviewing
significant financial reporting judgments
that they contain.
• Reviewing the Group’s internal controls,
risk management, and compliance with
the relevant regulations.
• Establishing, monitoring, and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s Internal Control
department, systems, and processes.
• Making recommendations to the Board in
relation to the appointment, reappointment,
resignation, discharge, and remuneration of
the external auditor and ensuring a timely
response by the Board on the matters
contained in the external auditor’s letter.
• Reviewing and monitoring the external
auditor’s independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process, taking
into consideration relevant professional
and regulatory requirements.
• Developing and implementing guidelines
on the engagement of the external auditor
to supply non-audit services, taking into
account relevant ethical guidance regarding
the provision of non-audit services by the
external audit firm.
• Reporting to the Board on matters that
in the Committee’s opinion require
action or improvement, and providing
recommendations on the necessary steps
required to achieve such improvement.

• Reviewing the whistle-blower system
whereby employees can anonymously notify
their doubts on potential abnormalities
in the financial report or internal controls
or any other matter, and ensuring proper
arrangements for independent and fair
investigations of such matters.

Related Party Transactions
Note 24 of the Financial Statements provides
details of related party transactions.
General Holding Corporation (Senaat) (holds
51% of Agthia Group PJSC Shares)
2016
AED’000

2015
AED’000

–

9

• Reviewing any related party transactions
and reviewing compliance with such
rules for the conduct and approval of
such transactions.

SENAAT

Other expenses

272

604

• Determining the appointment, compensation,
benefits, performance appraisal, discipline,
replacement, reassignment, or dismissal of
the Head of Internal Control and Compliance
as well as the Internal Control Department.

Total

272

613

Directors’ and Committee
Members’ fees paid

During 2016, six Audit Committee meetings
were held:
Audit Committee Member

24 24 25
Jan Feb Apr

24 25 27
Jul Oct Nov

HE Rashed Hamad Al
Dhaheri – Chairman

P

A

P

A

P

P

HE Amna Obaid
Al Zaabi

P

P

P

P

P

P

HE Salem Sultan
Obaid Al Dhaheri

P

P

P

P

P

P

Mr. Osama Al Sheleh

P

P

P

A

P

A

P: Present, A: Apologies sent/leave of absence was
granted to members not attending the meeting(s).

Total fee for the year 2016 is AED 0.20
million (2015: AED 0.20 million).
Conduct and Values Committee
The Conduct and Values Committee is
appointed as a sub-committee of the
Audit Committee by the Board of Directors
to assist the Audit Committee to review
arrangements by which staff of the Group
may, in confidence, raise concerns about
possible improprieties including fraud,
and to ensure that a process is in place
for the independent investigation of such
matters and for appropriate follow-up
action. The Committee is entrusted by the
Audit Committee with responsibilities for
receiving, reviewing, assessing credibility
of allegations, and investigating allegations.

Al Foah (fully owned subsidiary of Senaat)
Al Foah

2016
AED’000

Local purchases

15,108

8

Other expenses

2,097

102

17,205

110

Total

2015
AED’000

Emirates Iron & Steel Factory (fully owned
subsidiary of Senaat)
Emirates Iron & Steel Factory
(Emirates Steel)

2016
AED’000

2015
AED’000

664

598

Local sales

Dubai Cable Manufacturing Company (joint
venture with Senaat owning 50%)
Dubai Cable Manufacturing
Company (Ducab)

2016
AED’000

2015
AED’000

177

155

Local sales

Delegation of Authority
The Board is and shall remain responsible for
the overall governance of the Group and for
those matters that are reserved for the Board.
The Board through a resolution provided the
Chairman, powers and authorities on behalf
of the Board with the right of delegation.

The Chairman, under Special Power of
Attorney, delegated key authorities to the Vice
Chairman and Acting CEO jointly, which is
valid for three years until January 16, 2020.
Some of the key authorities delegated jointly
to the Vice-Chairman and Acting CEO by the
Board are as follows:
• To jointly manage the Company and
its subsidiaries’ operations;
• To represent and jointly manage the
Company and its subsidiaries in all
transactions and documents before
the Government;
• To sign jointly all contracts and agreements
on behalf of the Company inside and
outside of the United Arab Emirates;
• To represent the Company jointly in any
manufacturing and/or distribution deals;
• To represent the Company jointly before
the banks for opening and closing accounts,
applying for loans and financial facilities,
and signing LCs, bank guarantees, and
other bank documents.
• The Board has not delegated any special
authority to the Vice-Chairman and Acting
CEO in 2016.
In pursuance of the special powers and
authorities delegated to the Vice Chairman
and the Acting CEO, the Vice Chairman and
the Acting CEO have delegated some of their
decision making and approval authorities to
the Management as specified in the Authority
Matrix approved by Board. The Delegation of
Authority framework and policy is established
to define the limits of authority designated
to specified positions of responsibility within
the Group. The Authority Matrix ensures
efficient and effective decision making which
balances empowerment against controls.

Organization Structure
CEO
VP – Investor Relations &
Corporate Communication

Company Secretary and
VP – Legal Affairs

The Committee Members Are:
• Head of Internal Control and Compliance
(Chairman)

CFO

EVP, Feed, Flour
and Bakery

EVP – Water,
Beverage, Dairy

COO

• Vice-President – Human Capital & OD
• Vice-President – Legal Affairs
• Director, Risk and Governance

Director – Risk
& Governance
SVP – HOD
and Emerging
Business

VP – Public
Affairs

SVP – Strategy

SVP – Human
Capital & OD

VP – Sales

VP – QA,
FS, R&D

SVP – Value
Chain

Executive Committee Members
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Chief Executive Officer
The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is appointed
by the Board. The CEO is responsible for
delivering sustained growth, and must direct
the Group towards the achievement of
its business objectives, as defined by the
Board. The primary role of the CEO is to
define and execute the business vision,
mission, and strategy of the Group and
to ensure that all operations are managed
efficiently in terms of allocating resources
appropriately and profitably.
Iqbal Hamzah was the Group CEO for the
year ended 2016. On 11 January 2017, the
Board accepted Iqbal Hamzah’s resignation
from his post as CEO and Tariq Al Wahedi

was appointed as acting CEO of the Group.
Prior to his appointment, Tariq had been
the Group’s Chief Operating Officer, also
leading the feed and flour business. Prior
to joining Agthia, Tariq previously held the
positions of Senior Vice President at Senaat
and Abu Dhabi Basic Industries Corporation.
Tariq Ahmed Saeed Al Wahedi
Acting Chief Executive Officer
Date of joining: September 13, 2015
Qualifications:
Bachelor of Science in Petroleum
Engineering (USA)
Executive Master of Business
Administration (UK)

Below are the details of all the Senior Executives, illustrating their appointment dates,
remuneration, and bonus for 2016.
Remuneration and Bonus for 20161 Remuneration
(estimate) accrued in future
Allowances paid in 2016
AED’000 (estimate)2 AED’000
AED’000

Position

Appointment Date

Chief Executive Officer3

Sept 29, 2014

2,712

751

To be determined

• Prepare and maintain a special and
comprehensive register of all insiders,
including Directors, Executive Management,
and persons who could be considered as
insiders on a temporary basis.
• Developing, reviewing, and continuously
improving the Trading in Group Shares
Policy including guidelines and procedures,
and ensuring compliance with the
policy and assessing any indicative noncompliance to the policy.
• Annual review of movement in insider
shareholdings and report to the Board on
compliance with the policy and regulatory
requirements, highlighting any exception
cases noted.
• Effective communication with ADX and
SCA regarding black-out days, temporary
suspension of trading, and insider trading.
The Committee members are:
• Vice President, Corporate Finance;
• Vice President, Legal Affairs and
Company Secretary;

Chief Operating Officer

Sept 13, 2015

2,425

349

To be determined

Chief Finance Officer4

July 4, 2016

1,268

266

To be determined

Executive Vice-President –
Water, Beverage, Dairy

April 15, 2014

1,770

331

To be determined

Executive Vice-President –
Feed, Flour, Bakery

Risk Management

April 15, 2014

1,424

300

To be determined

Senior Vice-President –
Human Capital & OD

April 15, 2014

1,266

158

To be determined

Senior Vice-President –
HOD & Emerging Business

April 15, 2014

Risk management is integral to Agthia’s
strategy and to the achievement of our
long-term goals. The Board has established
a risk and control structure designed to
manage the achievement of strategic
business objectives. In doing so, we take
an embedded approach that places risk
management at the core of the leadership
team agenda, which is where we believe
it should be.

1,303

155

To be determined

Senior Vice-President – Strategy Jan 6, 2016

1,094

124

To be determined

Vice-President – Public Affairs

1,280

123

To be determined

April 15, 2014

1 Payment for 2016 bonus is subject to shareholders’ approval of the audited financial statements.
2 The total vested value of Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTI) accrued in 2016 is AED 4.33 million. The LTI benefits
for the management are subject to Board approval and are linked to long-term business performance.
3 Represents remuneration of Iqbal Hamzah during his tenure as CEO in 2016.
4 On July 4, 2016, Fatih Yeldan was appointed Chief Financial Officer of the Group. Prior to this appointment,
Fatih had been Acting Chief Financial Officer of the Group and Finance Director of Agri Business.

Executive Committee

Insider Trading Management Committee

The Executive Committee is composed of
senior executives of the Group responsible
for the management of the business, and
meets on a regular basis. The committee
members report to the CEO. The prime role
of the Executive Committee is to review
business performance, and organizational
and operational matters; set strategies/
initiatives and monitor their successful
execution; and review key business KPIs,
progress on key projects etc.

The Insider Trading Management Committee
is appointed by the Board as a Management
Committee to oversee and follow up on
insiders’ trading and their holdings. The
Committee is entrusted by the Board with
the following responsibilities:
• Ensuring that the reputation of the Group
is not adversely impacted by perceptions
of trading in the Group’s securities at
inappropriate times or in an inappropriate
manner by employees of the Company.
• Evaluating where the employee or third
party (such as the Group’s auditors,
bankers, lawyers or other professional
advisors) may be classified as an insider
who has direct or indirect access to
“inside information” which may affect
Group’s share price and/or trading of
Group’s shares.
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• Director Risk and Governance; and
• Corporate Office Manager

The Board provides oversight of the Group’s
risk management strategy and has the
overall responsibility for setting the Group’s
risk appetite. Risk appetite guides the Group
in determining the nature and extent of risk
it would ordinarily accept, while executing
the business model for creating sustainable
shareholder value.
The Group accepts and applies a moderate
risk appetite as it seeks a balanced
management of opportunities for sustained
business growth, along with focused
identification and exploitation of opportunities
generated through its business. It is
not the Group’s strategy to seek accelerated
growth by embracing choices with
significant uncertainties.

The Audit Committee oversees compliance
with risk management processes and the
adequacy of risk management activities
related to the Group’s operations.
In addition, the Risk Management Committee
reviews the risk appetite and overall risk
strategy, and makes recommendations to the
Board through the Audit Committee and
actions required to ensure adequate controls/
mitigating actions are in place against key
identified risks.
The Group applies a structured and robust
Enterprise Risk Management approach
whereby the risk management process is
implemented in defined steps: Identify, Assess,
Prioritize, Mitigate, Monitor, and Report.
The Group has established a Risk and
Governance Function separate from line
management that enables and facilitates the
risk management process across the Group.
Wasif Syed Muhammad is the Director,
Risk and Governance for the Group and
has the following qualifications:
Qualifications:
Fellow Member, Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan
Fellow Member, Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, UK
Member, Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA), USA
External Auditors
The Board nominates the Group’s external
auditors based on the recommendation
of the Audit Committee. The appointment
and remuneration of the external auditors
is approved by the General Assembly
of Shareholders.
At the General Assembly Meeting held
on March 24, 2016, the shareholders
re-appointed KPMG, one of the leading
international audit firms, as the external
auditors for the year 2016. KPMG is a
multinational professional services firm
headquartered in the Netherlands. It is
one of the Big Four audit firms.
KPMG has been the only external auditor
of the Company since their appointment
at the General Assembly Meeting held on
March 24, 2016.
Audit and non-audit related fees and costs
of the services provided by the external
auditors during 2016 were AED 797,940.
AED

Year End – Audit

287,291

Quarter Review

402,942

Review of Subsidy
Other Non-Audit services*
Total

45,000
62,707
797,940

* other non-audit services mainly includes XBRL reporting

Internal Control
The Group’s system of internal control aims to
ensure that the Board and management are
able to fulfil the Group’s business objectives.
An effective internal control framework
contributes to safeguarding the shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets.
The objective of the Group’s internal control
framework is to ensure that internal controls
are established; that policies and procedures
are properly documented, maintained, and
adhered to, and are incorporated by the
Group within its normal management and
governance processes.
The Group’s operating policies and procedures
are considered to be adequate and effective,
while recognizing that such a system is
designed to mitigate rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. There is an ongoing
process for identifying, evaluating, and
managing the risks faced by the Group. The
management is responsible for identifying
key risks and assessing their probable
impact through formal defined processes.
The Board of Directors acknowledges its
responsibility for the Group’s internal control
framework. The Board has delegated
responsibility for oversight of the Internal
Control Department (ICD) to the Audit
Committee. The Head of Internal Control
and Compliance is appointed by the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee reviews
the effectiveness of ICD.
The objective of the function is to provide
independent assurance and consulting
services using a disciplined systematic
approach to improve the effectiveness of risk
management, internal control, compliance
and governance process, and the integrity of
the Group’s operations. The function is also
responsible for monitoring the compliance
of the Group and its employees with the law,
regulations, and resolutions, as well as
internal policies and procedures. A Charter
sets out the purpose, authority, and
responsibility of the function.
Reports prepared by ICD are submitted to
the Audit Committee and copied to the
senior management of the Group for action.
During the year, no significant internal
control failures were identified. However,
certain process-level improvements were
identified and accepted for implementation
towards the continuous improvement of
internal controls of the Group. On an
ongoing basis, the Audit Committee
monitors the progress that management has
made with respect to remedial actions taken
on issues and findings raised by ICD.

On February 1, 2016, Anish Ulhas Mehta
was appointed as the Acting Head of
Internal Control and Compliance. He is
also the Compliance Officer and has the
following qualifications:
Qualifications:
Member, Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA)
Member, Institute of Internal Controls (IIC)
Master of Applied Finance and
Banking, Australia
Bachelors of Commerce & Finance, Australia
Violations
During the year 2016, the Group was not
subject to any material fines or penalties
imposed by SCA or any statutory authority
on any matter related to capital markets.
Additionally, there have been no cases of
material non-compliance with any applicable
rules and regulations. No major incidents
occurred in 2016.
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
The Group’s CSR program has four pillars:
Health and Wellness, Food Safety and Food
Security, People and Emiratization, and
Environment. The total amount spent in
2016 on CSR initiatives was AED 1.46
million (2015: AED 2.36 million). The
key initiatives or sponsorships related to
community support are: Rashid Center for
the Disabled and Zaheb initiative, aiming
at developing workforce-readiness skills
for 1500 Emirati youth in Abu Dhabi, in
partnership with Injaz UAE.
Share Performance 2016
Month end share price (AED)
Month

Open

High

Low

Close

Jan-16

7

7.40

6.99

7.40

Feb-16

6.93

7.39

6.93

7.15

Mar-16

7.35

7.67

7.35

7.67

Apr-16

7.64

7.80

7.64

7.80

May-16

7.50

7.70

7.42

7.42

Jun-16

7.55

7.75

7.55

7.75

Jul-16

7.62

7.76

7.62

7.76

Aug-16

5.95

5.95

5.91

5.95

Sep-16

6.25

6.3

6.25

6.3

Oct-16

6

6.01

5.99

6

Nov-16

6.16

6.2

6.15

6.15

Dec-16

6.8

7.3

6.8

7.1

No other services of the external auditors
were utilized during 2016.
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Share movement versus ADI and ADCM Index 2016

Resolutions Passed in General Assembly

Base: December 31, 2011

The Company’s annual General Assembly
was held on March 24, 2016. The below
resolutions were passed at the General
Assembly, following which all the resolutions
were implemented.
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Agthia share price movement fluctuation

ADI (ADX Market index)

ADCM (Sector index (Consumer sector))

Shareholder Category (number of shares)
As of December 31, 2016
Category

Government

Individuals

Institutional

Total

Percentage

UAE

342,880,837

109,641,559

67,617,531

520,139,927

86.7%

GCC

-

135,215

32,624,241

32,759,456

5.5%

Arabs

-

807,897

58,802

866,699

0.1%

Foreign
Total

-

2,178,645

44,055,273

46,233,918

7.7%

342,880,837

112,763,316

144,355,847

600,000,000

100.0%

57.1%

18.8%

24.1%

100.0%

Percentage

Shareholders Owning 5% Or More
As of December 31, 2016
Shareholders

No. of shares

Percentage

306,000,000

51.00%

Emirates International Investment Company L.L.C

33,361,799

5.60%

Abu Dhabi Retirement Pensions and Benefits Fund

30,000,000

5.00%

General Holding Company

Significant Events in 2016

Distribution of Shareholders According to Size of Ownership
As of December 31, 2016
Share ownership

Less than 50,000
From 50,000 to less than 500,000
From 500,000 to less than 5,000,000
5,000,000 and more
Total

Investor Relations
The Board is committed to effective
communication between the Group and
its shareholders. The Group regularly
announces its results to SCA, ADX, and
shareholders by way of interim management
statements, quarterly results, and the annual
report and annual financial statements.
Significant matters relating to share trading
or business development are disclosed to
SCA, ADX, and the general public by way of
market disclosures and announcements in
accordance with the related provisions of
applicable laws and regulations, in addition
to press releases and postings on the
Group’s website. The annual investor
relations program of the Group includes:
• Quarterly conference calls on financial
results with investment community;
• Responding to enquiries from
shareholders through the Group’s
investor relations function;
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No. of shareholders No. of shares owned

71,727

• Approved Board of Directors’ Report on the
Company’s activities and financial position
for 2015
• Approved Auditor’s Report on the financial
position for 2015
• Approved Balance Sheet and Profit and
Loss account for 2015
• Approved Board of Directors’ proposal for
a cash dividend of 12.5%
• Discharged Directors from liability for 2015
• Discharged Auditors from liability for 2015
• Approved Directors’ remuneration for 2015
of AED 1.4 million
• Appointed Auditors for 2016 and fixed
their remuneration
• Appointed HE Salem Sultan Al Dhaheri as
Board member to fill the casual vacancy
that arose in 2015
• Approved amended Articles of Association
pursuant to the provisions of Law no. 2
of 2015
• Approved authorized capital of AED 1 billion
with a remaining issued and paid-up capital
of AED 600 million

Percentage

99,893,543

17%

154

24,239,402

4%

53

66,269,267

11%

8

409,597,788

68%

71,942

600,000,000

100%

• Meetings between investors, analysts,
and senior management;
• Regular investor roadshows and
conferences organized by investment
community; and
• A section dedicated to investors on the
Group’s website, which comprises annual
reports, quarterly results, corporate
governance report, analyst coverage,
investor presentations, share price, and
dividend information (http://www.agthia.
com/en-us/Investor-home)
Ozgur Serin is the Vice President, Investor
Relations and Corporate Communications for
the Group and has the following qualifications:
Qualifications:
Certified Investor Relations Officer

Acquisition of Water-Bottling Plant
in Saudi Arabia
On November 13, 2016 Agthia Group signed
a 100% purchase agreement for the shares
in the water business of Delta Marketing
Company, based in Jeddah, Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia, producing bottled water. The
transaction is expected to be completed in
the first quarter of 2017, following regulatory
approvals and other closing conditions.
Delta’s water business has been present
in Saudi Arabia for three decades. The
acquisition enables Agthia to enter the Saudi
Arabia market for the first time through the
bottled mineral water brand, reflecting the
Group’s strategy to expand in the GCC.
Agthia and Al Wafir to Build Water-Bottling
Plant in Kuwait
On May 2, 2016 Agthia Group entered into a
joint venture (as a 50:50-based partnership)
with Kuwait’s Al Wafir Marketing Services
Company K.S.C.C., to establish a waterbottling plant in Kuwait. The plant is expected
to commence operations by the second half
of 2017 and will mainly produce water under
Agthia’s flagship brand “Al Ain”.

Bachelor of Science in Management
Shareholders and investors can utilize
the following channels to reach Agthia’s
investors relations team:

Eng Dhafer Ayed Al Ahbabi

Phone: +971 2 596 0600
Email: ir@agthia.com

March 23, 2017

Chairman

Directors’ Report

Dear Shareholders,

Strategy Review

We are very pleased to report another year
of growth for Agthia, successfully navigating
our way through an environment that was
not as buoyant as it has been in recent
years. Higher sales and lower commodity
costs in addition to production efficiencies
and favorable product mix carried our net
profit to AED 254 million, a 10 percent
increase compared with last year. Net
revenues grew by 8 percent and reached
AED 2.01 billion, amid shrinking consumer
spending and subsidy rationalization. Water
has been the engine of growth at home in
the UAE, reinforcing its volume and value
share leadership in the market. The recent
acquisition of the water business of Delta
Marketing Company in Saudi Arabia has
not only put strong foundations in place
to become a true and meaningful regional
water leader with our Al Ain Water, but
it also is a testament to our commitment
to deliver sustainable growth for our
shareholders through international
expansion and acquisitions. In Flour and
Animal Feed, although our business results
were unfavorably impacted by changes
in the subsidy regime, it provided us with
an opportunity to defend our brands under
intense competition.

2016 was the first year of execution
of our five-year strategy aimed at becoming
one of the Middle East’s leading food and
beverage companies by achieving one billion
dollar net revenues by 2020. We succeeded
in remaining on track in fulfilling most of the
steps that will get us to our 2020 Vision.
A cornerstone of this strategy is expanding
our water business beyond the UAE,
primarily into the GCC. Earlier this year,
we entered into a joint venture in Kuwait
to establish a water-bottling plant, which
is expected to be completed in the second
half of 2017. Most recently in November
we signed a purchase agreement for 100
percent of the shares in the water business
of Delta Marketing Company, based in
Jeddah, Saudi Arabia, which also owns
and produces “Al Ain” brand water in
the Kingdom. The transaction is expected
to be completed by Quarter 1, 2017,
following regulatory approvals and other
closing conditions.

Throughout the year, we were innovative
in our launch of new products, from Al Ain
Zero to Al Ain Fresh juices with extended
shelf life, from a range of ambient croissants
to new variants of Capri-Sun and Yoplait, to
new animal feed with enhanced immunity
and performance, and finally to the captivating
collection of limited edition frosted glass
Al Ain bottles to celebrate the inspiring
achievements of the UAE and pay tribute
to the nation.
The Company’s balance sheet remains
strong and healthy, with a positive
operating cash flow to support our future
expansion plans.
It is with this sense of achievement that,
on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Agthia Group, I commend our employees
for their efforts in making 2016 another
year of high performance for all of us.
I would also like to take this opportunity to
specially thank Iqbal Hamzah, our previous
CEO, who resigned in January 2017, for
his contribution to Agthia’s phenomenal
growth over the course of more than
10 years of dedicated service.

However, we are still continuing our efforts
to find and complete a viable M&A
opportunity in 2017 in Dairy and Juice.
Business Review
Water
The Water category, consisting of bottled
and 5-gallon water under the Al Ain Water,
Alpin, Al Bayan, and Ice Crystal brands,
posted net revenues of AED 653 million,
growing 20 percent over the same period
last year. Comparable like-for-like revenues
(accounting for Al Bayan results that were
not in the base) posted 11 percent growth
over last year.
•	The bottled-water market in the UAE
continued to grow but at a slower pace
than in recent years. In this environment,
where category growth remained at
4 percent, our shipments grew by
14 percent, due to distribution gains
across the UAE, concentrated efforts
to strengthen our range and availability
in Municipality outlets, continuous
investment behind brand building, new
product launches, and effective tactical
in-market activities.
•	Al Ain Water reached a record 25.5
percent and 23.4 percent volume
and value share (AC Nielsen ON16),
respectively, putting us more than
600 basis points ahead of the nearest
competitor in both volume and value.

•	Earlier in the year, we rolled out the
“Essentials for Life” campaign, highlighting
Al Ain Water’s balanced mineral
composition. In April, the second
high-speed bottling line began production,
increasing our bottling capacity in the
UAE by 40 percent. We introduced Al Ain
ZERO in September, a breakthrough
sodium-free bottled water that reflects
Agthia’s commitment to be in constant
touch with evolving consumer needs and
remain ahead of the curve. Al Ain Water
Sports Cap was introduced in November
in the Municipality outlets.
•	Shipments and revenues of Alpin, the
natural mineral water produced in our
own manufacturing facilities in Turkey and
distributed in the UAE, have more than
doubled (123 percent higher) versus the
same period last year.
•	Al Bayan 5-gallon and bottled water
continue to outperform pre-acquisition
targets. With identified business
synergies already realized, like-for-like
revenues grew by 13 percent, bolstered
by a doubling Al Bayan PET business
especially in lower traditional trade.
Beverages
The Beverages category, consisting of CapriSun fruit juices and Al Ain Fresh juices,
posted net revenues of AED 81 million, and
remained flat versus year ago in a declining
juice category.
•	Capri-Sun experienced a challenging year.
New school regulations, in addition to
downsized spending levels by consumers,
slowed the brand’s growth momentum
despite the new product launches and
continued promotional support, resulting
in a 2 percent drop in net revenues
versus the previous year. The year has
seen the introduction of Capri-Sun Big
Pouch in April with a re-sealable cap for
consumers to enjoy refreshment on the go,
and Capri-Sun Fruit Crush with 100%
juice content in schools in Dubai, Sharjah,
and the Northern Emirates in September.
•	Al Ain freshly squeezed juices were
launched in the retail channel with a
longer shelf life, complementing an
already existing 3-day shelf life portfolio
in the institutional and HORECA channels.
Using unique High Pressure Pasteurization
(HPP) technology, which allows
preservation of taste and nutritional values
intact for longer shelf life without any
additives or preservatives, we introduced
five flavors in retail trade channels.
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Dairy (Yogurt)
The Dairy business, under the Yoplait
brand mainly in the fruit and kids’ yogurt
segments, posted AED 33 million net
revenue, growing 29 percent year-on-year
in declining respective segments.
• Yoplait has strongly contributed to the
Group’s growth in 2016. The introduction
of new flavors and products, activation
of new advertising campaigns including
digital marketing, and revamped
distribution of plain yogurt in food service
outlets with a new 10kg product brought
about a performance far ahead of the
declining yogurt category. Consequently,
Yoplait became the second brand in
the value-added segment of the yogurt
category at the end of 2016.
• Larger scale of business combined with
lower milk powder prices resulted in 720
basis points higher gross profit margin
than a year ago (32 percent versus 25
percent). Accordingly, net loss decreased
by 41 percent to AED 7 million.
Flour and Animal Feed
What characterized 2016 for Flour and
Animal Feed has been our fast and effective
action in defending our brands and market
shares in response to the changes in
subsidy regime effective from July 2016
(in place in Abu Dhabi since 2007).
This has helped us first to contain, and
then to minimize, the adverse financial
consequences of subsidy rationalization
on our businesses.

Flour
Overall Flour business including exports and
wheat trading posted net revenues of AED
434 million, 2 percent higher than a year ago.

Animal Feed
The total Animal Feed business posted net
revenues of AED 669 million, a decline of
2 percent versus a year ago.

• 2016 started with very strong growth in
the first quarter, 16 percent year-on-year,
on the back of growing exports, wheat
trading business, and aggressive B2B
customer base expansion in both Abu
Dhabi and the Northern Emirates.

• We have already been facing and
addressing aggressive competitive pressures
in the UAE when the subsidy regime
changed at the half-year end. The scope
of change was wider, and implementation
was earlier. The subsidy remained in
place for only the Commercial Farms but it
was withdrawn everywhere else including
Municipality and Distributor channels, in
full and effective July 1, 2016.

• Subsidy rationalization was announced at
the end of the half-year, removing subsidy
in full in selected sales channels (Retail,
Trading, and Catering) from September 1,
2016. On the other hand, in our largest
sales channel, Bakeries, the subsidy
remains intact until June 30, 2017, when
it will be reduced by half, to be fully
withdrawn on June 30, 2018.
• Our response has varied across our
channels. In the affected channels we
increased our prices. In order to protect our
volume in the larger Trading and Catering
channels, we launched price fighter value
range products, which provided us with
strong leverage to defend our market share
and minimize loss of volume. In the much
smaller Retail channel, increased shelf
prices of our products resulted in an
anticipated volume loss. In Bakeries, we
continued to introduce specialty new
products, like Tandoor bread and all-baking
flour, and stepped up our programs for new
customer acquisitions especially in the
Northern Emirates. Marketing support
continued in full force across the UAE
with the aim of driving B2B customer
loyalty and building up brand and product
awareness in B2C customers.
• Exports continued their strong growth
momentum (43 percent ahead of last
year), mainly on the back of higher East
Africa business.
• Although our gross profit margin was
adversely affected by partial withdrawal of
subsidies and the impact of our subsequent
actions to defend volume, at 46 percent it
was still 423 basis points higher than last
year, mainly due to our success in procuring
wheat at lower costs all through 2016.
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• Our immediate response has been to
increase our prices in the affected
channels in line with market prices.
This was followed by a plethora of new
product launches in record time as part
of our volume defense strategy, including
price fighter value range products in
both small and large animal segments,
supported by strong marketing
communication around Agrivita’s features
and benefits. Subsequently, we continued
to introduce new products with enhanced
immunity and productivity features for
various animals, to cater for the needs
of our customers.
• In an effort to create differentiated
customer service and build brand loyalty,
we opened two “Agthia” stores, enabling
direct Agrivita sales to small farmers.
• These and other actions in addition to
growing export and trading businesses
have limited our volume losses, and
subsequent unfavorable effects on our
financial performance.

Emerging Businesses
Emerging Businesses (Tomato Paste,
Frozen Vegetables, Bakery, Dates, and other
convenience products) posted net revenues
of AED 143 million, growing 30 percent
versus the same period last year. Combined
losses reduced by 56 percent from more
than AED 10 million to AED 4.5 million,
despite the incrementally adverse impact
of an unprecedented currency devaluation
in Egypt.
• In the UAE, Al Ain Tomato Paste and
Frozen Vegetables, and Pure Natural
convenience products for the Municipality
outlets have recorded an outstanding
performance, growing 30 percent over last
year. A brand new packaging for Al Ain
Frozen Vegetables and Tomato Paste, and
new Pure Natural products like Instant
Coffee, Tomato Ketchup, Roasted Coffee,
Pasta Corni, and new variants of Tissue in
the Municipalities, have all contributed
to this result.
• “Date Crown” dates, which were not
in the base, recorded AED 15.6 million
revenues. Since we took over its
distribution, we have given a totally
new spin to the brand and the products,
enhancing their availability, visibility,
and awareness in the retail trade as
never before.
• Efforts to establish a solid Bakery business
base have continued all through the year.
We launched our Grand Baker “ambient
croissant line” in the first quarter of the year
and since then have introduced a variety
of new SKUs in the retail trade. In Frozen
Bakery, in addition to ongoing business
with the Monty’s Bakehouse franchise in
the airline catering industry, we stepped
into the Bakery channel with the
introduction of a range of frozen croissants.
• It has been another tough year in Egypt.
In addition to a season with bad crops,
a more than 100 percent devaluation
closer to the end of the year have taken
their toll on our top and bottom lines,
both of which posted declining results
versus last year.

SG&A Expenses

Corporate Social Responsibility

Total SG&A expenses rose 20 percent
year-on-year to AED 444 million; excluding
Al Bayan, the increase was 13 percent,
which is mainly attributable to higher
selling and distribution costs from larger
volumes shipped, increased brand building
investment to defend and reinforce our
brands against aggressive competition, and
costs associated with the new organization
structure. Consequently, SG&A expenses as a
percentage of sales stood at 22 percent, 220
basis points higher than last year; excluding
Al Bayan, this increase was 150 basis points.

In 2016, we revisited and subsequently
redefined our approach to Corporate Social
Responsibility, centered on the idea of
creating “shared value” through driving
change towards sustainability. Aimed at
embedding sustainability into the core
of our business operations to produce an
overall positive impact on business and
society, and to create shared value for
all of our stakeholders through economic,
environmental, and social actions, we
reorganized our efforts under four main
areas: Community, Workplace, Nutrition
& Well-being, and Environment &
Sustainability. Comprising multiple chapters,
each area covers specific goals that we are
aspiring to accomplish by 2020.

Cashflow
Cash accumulated from operating activities
totaled AED 240 million during the period.
Cash and cash equivalents, and fixed deposits
as at December 31, 2016 amounted to
AED 552 million.
To ensure uninterrupted availability of funds,
the Company maintains sufficient bank credit
lines at very competitive pricing to cover any
short-term working capital requirements.
Unallocated Corporate Items
Under segment reporting, an unallocated
assets amount of AED 785 million primarily
represents cash and bank balances and
goodwill.
Capital Commitments and Contingencies
Capital commitments of AED 61 million
mainly relate to our second high-speed
water-bottling line, warehouse expansion
in the UAE, and other capital items.
Bank guarantees and letters of credit of
AED 70 million have primarily been issued
in favor of governmental authorities and
the Company’s vendors for the supply of
materials and spare parts.
Key Investment Projects
Al Ain Water’s second high-speed line
commenced production in April 2016, and
increased our capacity to 75 million cases
per annum – around a 40 percent increase.
During the year we also completed
carry-forward investment projects: the new
Dubai Distribution Center, and Al Wathba
and Turkey warehouse expansions.

Concomitantly, we were very active in our
efforts to support the societies we are a
part of. Through our pioneering Zaheb
initiative that was launched last year in
partnership with Injaz UAE, a member of
Junior Achievement Worldwide – the largest
experiential business education provider
globally, aiming to develop workforce
readiness skills of Emirati youth in Abu
Dhabi, we provided 1,500 Emirati university
students with bespoke programs like
JA Career Success™, Steer Your Career,
Innovation Day Camp, and JA Job Shadow
Day™, positioning Agthia as the unrivaled
pioneer in this CSR initiative.
2016 was also the year of the highest
Emiratization record in Agthia’s history. The
number of UAE nationals in our workforce
reached 193 at the end of 2016, 26 people
more than a year ago. UAE nationals now
represent the third top nationality in Agthia
(7 percent) and the second top nationality
in senior management (15 percent). And
as a testament not only to quantity but
quality too, our continued commitment to
developing national talent was demonstrated
with the launch of our internal Career
Enhancement Program. This program, which
aims to accelerate the career of
high-performing nationals, trained 13 of our
top Emirati employees in its first cycle, who
are now ready to assume bigger
responsibilities.
A full report of our sustainability program,
together with the Company’s Corporate
Social Responsibility activities, is provided
in the relevant section of the annual report.
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Company Directors

Financial Reporting Framework

The present Board of Directors was elected
at the Annual General Meeting on April 28,
2014 for a term of three years.

The Directors of Agthia Group PJSC, to
the best of their knowledge, believe that:

Their office term will expire in April
2017. The retiring Directors are eligible
to contest election.
Directors’ fees, including those of committee
roles, of AED 1.40 million relating to 2015
were paid in 2016 to Board members.
Directors’ fees, including those of committee
roles, for 2016 totaled AED 1.4 million.
Dividend
The Board of Directors is pleased to
recommend a 15 percent cash dividend
for the year 2016.
Auditors
The present auditors, KPMG, retire,
and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the Annual
General Meeting.
Code of Corporate Governance
The Board of Directors and management
of the Company are committed to the
principles of good governance. A full report
of the Company’s Corporate Governance
activities, endorsed by the Board, has been
provided in the Corporate Governance
section of the annual report.

• The consolidated financial statements,
prepared by the management of the
Company, fairly present its state of affairs,
the results of its operations, cash flows,
and change in equity,
• The Company has maintained proper
books of accounts,
• Appropriate accounting policies have
been consistently applied in preparation
of the consolidated financial statements,
and accounting estimates are based
on reasonable and prudent judgment,
• International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), as applicable, have
been followed in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements,
• The system of internal control is sound
in design and has been effectively
implemented and monitored,
• There is no doubt about the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
Subsequent Events
As of the date of this report, no major
event has occurred which may have a
significant impact on the 2016 Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Incentivization / Remuneration
The Board of Directors recognizes the
importance of aligning the management
interests with those of the Company’s
shareholders. To support this strategy,
Agthia’s stock incentivization scheme
includes the senior executives and a number
of managers across the Group. The program
complements the performance bonus
incentives that reward individuals based
on their ability to achieve annual financial
and operational targets. The stock scheme
rewards management with Agthia stock
based on the overall performance of the
Company, measured on the basis of a
three-year compounded EPS growth target
and the performance of the individual.
Specific financial, operational, and individual
development goals are set each year.
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H.E. Eng. Dhafer Ayed Al Ahbabi
Chairman
March 23, 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report
KPMG Lower Gulf Limited
Level 19, Nation Tower 2
Abu Dhabi Corniche, UAE

Telephone +971 (2) 4014800
Fax +971 (2) 6327612
Website www.ae-kpmg.com

To the Shareholders of Agthia Group PJSC

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Agthia Group PJSC (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, the consolidated statements of profit or loss, other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2016, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the United Arab
Emirates, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(a) Carrying value of goodwill
Refer to note 2.6 and note 16 of the consolidated financial statements on pages 49 and 59 respectively.
The Group has significant goodwill arising from the acquisition of
businesses. The Group’s annual impairment testing on goodwill is
performed by Group management using free cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the Board and future
forecasts estimated by Group management. Due to the inherent
uncertainty involved in forecasting and discounting future cash
flows, which forms the basis of the assessment of recoverability, this
is one of the key judgmental areas that our audit concentrated on.

In respect of the assessment of Cash Generating Units (“CGUs”):
We challenged the assessment of CGUs and considered the operating
and management structure with reference to our understanding of
the business.
In respect of the cash flows, we considered the Group’s procedures
used to develop the forecasts and the principles and integrity of the
Group’s discounted cash flow model and re-performed the calculations
of the model results to test its accuracy. To challenge the reasonableness
of projected cash flows, we assessed the historical accuracy of the
Group’s forecasting and corroborated the forecasts with any other
evidence that has been made available during the course of the audit.
We conducted our own assessments to challenge other key inputs,
such as the projected growth rate and perpetuity rate.
In respect of the discount rate, we compared the Group’s assumptions
to externally-derived data (for example, bond yields and inflation
statistics) where appropriate.
In respect of the sensitivity to key assumptions: We performed sensitivity
analysis of discount rates and forecast cash flows as well as break-even
analysis to stress-test the valuations of the CGUs’ recoverable amounts.
We assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure in these respects.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(b) Acquisition accounting
Refer to note 2.2 and note 32 of the consolidated financial statements on pages 47 and 67 respectively.
The Group has signed a share purchase agreement (‘SPA’) on 13
November 2016 to acquire 100% stake in Delta Bottled Water
Factory Company (“the investee”), a Saudi limited liability company.
As per the SPA, the Group will receive in full the economic benefits
and be liable to bear in full the costs, arising from ownership of the
investee and its business from 30 June 2016. The management has
not consolidated the investee as at 31 December 2016 as in their
assessment control over the investee has not been achieved as at the
balance sheet date.
As per requirements of IFRS 3 “Business Combination”, The Company
will control the investee when the Group is exposed to (has rights to)
variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
There is a risk that control assessment might not have been
appropriately done and this will have significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

Our audit procedures in this area included an inspection of the SPA
underpinning the transaction, inquires with the management and
discussion with those charge with governance.
We have made assessment of control over relevant activities
specifically considering control at the shareholders, board of directors
and key management level, considering the factors applicable to
the transaction at 31 December 2016 including but not limited to
transfer of consideration, approval from regulatory authorities for the
transaction, transfer of shares, appointment of board of directors in
the investee, involvement of the Group’s key management persons
in decisions making process.
We have also involved our technical expert to assist us in concluding
the control assessment under IFRS 3.
We assessed the adequacy of disclosure in the Group’s
financial statements.

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS and
their preparation in compliance with the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:
•	Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
•	Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
•	Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by management.
•	Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
•	Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
•	Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015, we report that:
i.	We have obtained all the information and explanations we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit;
ii.	the consolidated financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects, with the applicable provisions of the UAE
Federal Law No. (2) of 2015;
iii.	the Group has maintained proper books of accounts;
iv.	the financial information included in the Directors’ Report, in so far as it relates to these consolidated financial statements, is consistent
with the books of accounts of the Group;
v.	as disclosed in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group has not purchased any shares during the year ended 31
December 2016;
vi.	note 24 to the consolidated financial statements discloses material related party transactions and the terms under which they were
conducted; and
vii.	based on the information that has been made available to us, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Group
has contravened during the financial year ended 31 December 2016 any of the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of
2015 or its Articles of Association, which would materially affect its activities or its consolidated financial position as at 31 December 2016.

KPMG Lower Gulf Limited

Fawzi AbuRass
Registration No. 968
Abu Dhabi
United Arab Emirates
Date:23 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31 December

Notes

Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit

6

2016
AED’000

2015
AED’000

2,011,941
(1,317,060)
694,881

1,866,350
(1,269,056)
597,294

Selling and distribution expenses
General and administrative expenses
Research and development costs
Other income – net
Operating profit

7
8
9
10

(291,439)
(147,248)
(5,472)
13,504
264,226

(231,407)
(132,718)
(4,634)
7,306
235,841

Finance income
Finance expense
Profit before tax

11
12

17,263
(26,870)
254,619

11,572
(15,718)
231,695

13, 26

(349)
254,270
0.424

(381)
231,314
0.386

Income tax expense
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Group
Basic and diluted earnings per share (AED)

14

The notes set out on pages 46 to 67 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
The independent auditors’ report is set out on pages 38 to 40.
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Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Group
Other comprehensive income
Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Foreign currency translation difference on foreign operations
Cash flow hedges – effective portion of changes in fair value (net)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement of end of service benefits
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to equity holders of the Group

The notes set out on pages 46 to 67 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
The independent auditors’ report is set out on pages 38 to 40.
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2016
AED’000

2015
AED’000

254,270

231,314

(18,735)
(19,423)

(6,616)
–

163
(37,995)
216,275

–
(6,616)
224,698

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December

2016
AED’000

2015
AED’000

1,016,505
9,957
188,336
32,608
1,587
1,248,993

933,491
33,714
188,336
35,454
–
1,190,995

18
19
24
20
21

301,220
346,699
380
95,357
552,455
1,296,111

262,032
270,771
240
80,103
570,903
1,184,049

22
23
24

304,959
318,638
1,805
625,402
670,709

292,815
318,431
513
611,759
572,290

25
22
26
27

61,101
165,303
323
7,289
234,016
1,685,686

49,343
165,303
918
3,310
218,874
1,544,411

28
29

600,000
146,850
(40,303)
(19,260)
998,399
1,685,686

600,000
121,423
(21,568)
–
844,556
1,544,411

Notes

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Advances for property, plant and equipment
Goodwill
Intangible assets
Other financial assets
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Due from related parties
Government compensation receivable
Cash and bank balances
Total current assets
Current liabilities
Bank borrowings (current portion)
Trade and other payables
Due to related parties
Total current liabilities
Net current assets
Non-current liabilities
Provision for end of service benefits
Bank borrowings (non-current portion)
Deferred tax liability
Other financial liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Net assets
Equity
Share capital
Legal reserve
Translation reserve
Other reserve
Retained earnings
Total equity

15
16
17
27

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2017 and were signed on their
behalf by:

HE Eng Dhafer Ayed Al Ahbabi
Chairman

Tariq Al Wahedi
Acting CEO

Fatih Yeldan
CFO

The notes set out on pages 46 to 67 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
The independent auditors’ report is set out on pages 38 to 40.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December

Share
capital
AED’000

Legal
reserve
AED’000

Translation
reserve
AED’000

600,000

98,292

(14,952)

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year

–

–

Other comprehensive income:
Foreign currency translation difference on foreign operations
Total comprehensive income

–
–

–
–

Owners’ changes directly in Equity
Dividend for the year 2014
Transfer to legal reserve

–
–

–
23,131

600,000

121,423

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year

–

–

Other comprehensive income:
Foreign currency translation difference on foreign operations
Cash flow hedge – effective portion of changes in fair value (net)
Re-measurement of end of service benefit
Total comprehensive income

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

(18,735)
–
–
(18,735)

–
–
600,000

–
25,427
146,850

–
–
(40,303)

Balance at 1 January 2015

Balance at 31 December 2015

Owners’ changes directly in Equity
Dividend for the year 2015
Transfer to legal reserve
Balance at 31 December 2016

The notes set out on pages 46 to 67 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
The independent auditors’ report is set out on pages 38 to 40.
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–
(6,616)
(6,616)
–
–
(21,568)
–

Other
reserve
AED’000

Retained
earnings
AED’000

Total
AED’000

–

696,373 1,379,713

–

231,314

231,314

–
–

–
231,314

(6,616)
224,698

–
–

(60,000)
(23,131)

(60,000)
–

–

844,556 1,544,411

–

254,270

254,270

–
(19,423)
163
(19,260)

–
–
–
254,270

(18,735)
(19,423)
163
216,275

–
–
(19,260)

(75,000)
(75,000)
(25,427)
–
998,399 1,685,686

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December

2016
AED’000

2015
AED’000

254,270

231,314

90,751
1,426
26,870
(17,263)
1,898
1,192
5,215
15,016
349
379,724

82,522
–
15,718
(11,572)
(722)
(367)
32
12,735
381
330,041

(40,242)
(81,792)
(140)
(15,254)
4,713
1,292
(4,786)
243,515

135,886
(33,909)
(240)
19,483
(115,804)
(860)
(713)
333,884

25

(3,095)
–
240,420

(1,772)
(247)
331,865

15

(174,107)
(207)
1,182
–
3,443
13,334
(156,355)

(169,488)
(337)
834
(162,410)
(11,608)
10,670
(332,339)

–
4,185
(12,245)
(75,000)
(26,408)
(109,468)
(25,403)
44,155
2,621
21,373

165,303
(88,049)
–
(60,000)
(15,126)
2,128
1,654
38,985
3,516
44,155

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Amortisation
Finance expense
Finance income
Loss/(gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment
Movement in provision for slow moving inventory
Movement in allowance for impairment loss
Provision for employees end of service benefits
Income tax expense

15
17
12
11
10

25

Changes in:
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Due from relates parties
Government compensation receivable
Trade and other payables
Due to related parties
Other liabilities
Cash generated from operating activities
Payment of employees end of service benefits
Tax paid
Net cash from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Advances/acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of subsidiary
Funds divested/(invested in) fixed deposits
Interest received
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from term loan
Bank borrowings – net
Settlement of derivative – net
Dividend paid
Interest paid
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Effect of foreign exchange
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

21

21

The notes set out on pages 46 to 67 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
The independent auditors’ report is set out on pages 38 to 40.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

1

Legal status and principal activities

Agthia Group PJSC (the “Company”) was incorporated as a Public Joint Stock Company pursuant to the Ministerial Resolution No. 324 for
2004 in the Emirate of Abu Dhabi. General Holding Corporation PJSC (SENAAT) owns 51% of the Company’s shares which is wholly
owned by the Government of Abu Dhabi. The principal activities of the Company are to establish, invest, trade and operate companies and
businesses that are involved in the food and beverage sector.
The consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 comprise the Company and its
below mentioned subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

Name of subsidiaries

Country of
Incorporation
and operation

Grand Mills Company PJSC

Share of equity (%)
2016

2015

Principal Activities

UAE

100

100

Production and sale of flour and animal feed.

Al Ain Food and Beverages PJSC (AAFB-UAE)

UAE

100

100

Production and sale of bottled water, flavored
water, juices, yogurt, tomato paste, frozen
vegetables and frozen baked products.

Agthia Group Egypt LLC (Agthia Egypt)

Egypt

100

100

Processing and sale of tomato paste, chilli
paste, fruit concentrate and frozen vegetables.

Agthia Grup Icecek ve Dagitim Sanayi ve Ticaret Limited Turkey
Sirketi (Agthia Turkey)

100

100

Al Bayan Purification and Potable Water LLC

UAE

100

100

Production, bottling and sale of bottled water.

Shaklan Plastic Manufacturing Co. LLC

UAE

100

100

Production of plastic bottles and containers

Al Manal Purification and Bottling of Mineral Water LLC

Oman

100

100

Production, bottling and sale of bottled water.

2

Production, bottling and sale of bottled water.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
2.1

Basis of preparation

(a)
Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and
Interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee of the IASB (IFRIC) and applicable requirements of the UAE Federal Law No 2
of 2015 being the Commercial Companies Law (“UAE Companies Law of 2015”).
(b) Basis of measurement
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis except for derivative financial instruments,
which are carried at fair value.
(c)
Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). These consolidated financial statements are presented in ‘United
Arab Emirates Dirham’ (AED), which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.
(d) Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised prospectively.
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective
A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2016 and earlier
application is permitted; however, the Group has not early adopted the following new or amended standards in preparing these consolidated
financial statements.
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. It replaces existing
revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes.
IFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early adoption permitted.
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2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)
IFRS-9 ‘Financial instruments’
IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early adoption permitted. The Group currently plans
to apply IFRS 9 initially on 1 January 2018.
The actual impact of adopting IFRS 9 on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in 2018 is not known and cannot be reliably estimated
because it will be dependent on the financial instruments that the Group holds and economic conditions at that time as well as accounting
elections and judgements that it will make in the future. The new standard will require the Group to revise its accounting processes and internal
controls related to reporting financial instruments and these changes are not yet complete.
IFRS 16 Leases
IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-of-use asset representing its
right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. There are optional exemptions for
short-term leases and leases of low value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard – i.e. lessors continue to classify
leases as finance or operating leases.
IFRS 16 replaces existing leases guidance including IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15
Operating Leases—Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.
The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early adoption is permitted for entities that apply IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers at or before the date of initial application of IFRS 16.
Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 7)
The amendments require disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flow and non-cash changes. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
I January 2017, with early adoption permitted.
2.2 Basis of consolidation
IFRS 10 governs the basis for consolidation where it establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including special purpose
entities or structured entities.
The definition of control under IFRS 10 is that an investor controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. To meet the definition of control
in IFRS 10, all the following three criteria must be met, including:
(a) the investor has power over an investee;
(b) the investor has exposure to, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
(c) the investor has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.
Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are investees that are controlled by the Group. The Group controls the investee if it meets the control criteria. The Group reassesses
whether it has control if, there are changes to one or more of the elements of control. This includes circumstances in which protective rights
held become substantive and lead to the Group having power over an investee. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in these
consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.
Business combination
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the fair value of the assets acquired, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
together with the fair value of any contingent consideration payable.
The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions – that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as owners. Gains or losses on disposals of non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.
Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised
gains arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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2.3 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Group’s CEO.
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses,
including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. All operating segments’ operating results
are reviewed regularly by the Group’s CEO to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and
for which discrete financial information is available (see note 5).
2.4

Foreign currency

(a)
Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within “finance income or finance expense”.
Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss within “finance income or finance expense”.
(b) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the Group’s functional and presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:
(i)	assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;
(ii)	income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss are translated at the rate prevailing on the date of the transaction; and
(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
2.5 Property, plant and equipment
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets
includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their
intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. Purchased software that
is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment. When parts of an item of property, plant
and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of property, plant and equipment.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
Freehold land is not depreciated though it is subject to impairment testing. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost or revalued amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
Buildings
Plant and equipment
Other equipment
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures

20-40 years
4-20 years
2-3 years
4-8 years
4-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (note 2.7).
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within ‘other income’
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Capital work in progress
The Group capitalises all costs relating to the construction of property, plant and equipment as capital work in progress, up to the date of
completion and commissioning of the assets.
These costs are then transferred from capital work in progress to the appropriate asset classification upon completion and commissioning,
and are depreciated over their useful economic lives from the date of such completion and commissioning.
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2.6

Intangible assets

2.6.1 Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the
acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Calculations are performed based on the expected cash flows of the relevant cash generating units and discounting them at an
appropriate discount rate, the determination of which requires the exercise of judgement.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating units or
groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose, identified according
to operating segments.
2.6.2 Acquired intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured initially at fair value which reflects market expectations of the probability that future economic
benefits embodied in the asset will flow to the entity.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised but tested for impairment annually or more frequently if the events and
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired either individually or at the cash-generating unit level.
The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is reviewed annually to determine whether the useful life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis. Gains or losses arising
from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life – for example, goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use – are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
2.8 Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: loans and receivables and at fair value through profit or loss. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.
(a)
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They
are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period. These are classified as
non-current assets. The Group’s loans and receivables comprise ‘trade and other receivables’, ‘due from related parties’, and ‘cash and bank
balances’ in the consolidated statement of financial position (notes 2.12 and 2.13). These assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any
directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. Derivative financial instruments are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets/liabilities in this category are classified as current assets/liabilities
if expected to be settled within 12 months, otherwise they are classified as non-current.
2.9 Impairment of financial assets
Impairment losses on financial assets carried at amortised cost are measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial
assets and the present value of estimated cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account against such financial assets. When a subsequent event causes
the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
2.10 Financial instruments
Financial instruments comprise trade and other receivables, amounts due from related parties, cash and bank balances, trade and other
payables, amounts due to related parties, derivative financial instruments, and bank loans. A financial instrument is recognised if the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus, any directly attributable transaction costs.
Financial assets are derecognised if the Group’s contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire, or if the Group transfers the
financial asset to another party without retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised
if the Group’s obligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged or cancelled.
Cash and bank balances comprise unrestricted cash balances and term deposits with original contractual maturities of three months or less.
The fair values of the financial instruments are not materially different from the carrying amount.
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2.10 Financial instruments (continued)
Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
Derivative financial instruments
The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk exposures. Derivatives are initially measured
at fair value; any directly attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives
are measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognised in profit or loss.
Cash flow hedges
When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is
recognised in OCI and accumulated in the hedging reserve. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
The amount accumulated in equity is retained in OCI and reclassified to profit or loss in the same period or periods during which the hedged
forecast cash flows affects profit or loss or the hedged item affects profit or loss.
If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the designation is revoked, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, then the amount accumulated in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
2.11 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Cost of inventories
includes expenditures incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion cost and other costs incurred in bringing them to their
existing location and condition. In case of manufactured inventories cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on
normal operating capacity. It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
2.12 Trade receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets.
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment.
2.13 Cash and bank balances
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of not more than three months and bank overdrafts. In the consolidated statement of financial
position, bank overdrafts are shown within current liabilities.
2.14 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
2.15 Trade payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
2.16 Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period of loan.

2.17 Current and deferred income tax
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the statement of financial position date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.18 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid
if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.
(a)
Bonus and long-term incentive plans
The Group recognises the liability for bonuses and long-term incentives in the consolidated statement of profit and loss on an accrued basis.
The benefits for the management are subject to board’s approval and are linked to business performance.
(b) Defined contribution plan
Monthly pension contributions are made in respect of UAE National employees, who are covered by the Law No. 2 of 2000. The pension fund
is administered by the Government of Abu Dhabi, Finance Department, represented by the Abu Dhabi Retirement Pensions and Benefits Fund.
(c)
Defined benefit plan
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Group currently operates an unfunded
scheme for defined benefits in accordance with the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Labour Law and is based on periods of cumulative
service and levels of employees’ final basic salaries. The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating
the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods discounted to determine its
present value. Any unrecognised past service costs are deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the valuation date on US AA-rated corporate
bonds, which in the absence of a deep market in corporate bonds within the UAE is the relevant proxy market as determined by the actuaries.
The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When benefits
of the plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit related to past service by employees is recognised in the profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. To the extent that the benefits vest immediately, the expense is
recognised immediately in the profit or loss. The Group recognises all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans in other
comprehensive income and all expenses related to defined benefit plans within profit or loss.
2.19 Provisions
Provisions for claims are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required and settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
2.20 Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of the
Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.
The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have been met
for each of the Group’s activities as described below. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable, excluding
discounts, rebates, and sales taxes or duty. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer,
the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the customer, there is no continuing
management involvement with the goods, amount of revenue, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs, possible return of
goods can be estimated reliably. The timing of the transfer of risks and rewards varies depending on the individual terms of the sales agreement.
Sale of services
Revenue from services rendered is recognised upon services performed.
2.21 Finance income and finance expenses
Finance income comprises interest income on call deposits and gains on derivative financial instrument (note 2.10). Interest income is recognised
as it accrues, using the effective interest method.
Finance expenses comprises interest expenses on borrowings and foreign exchange losses. All borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss using the effective interest method.
2.22 Leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. The Group leases certain properties and vehicles.
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2.23 Dividends distribution
Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the Group’s shareholders.
2.24 Government compensation and grants
Funds that compensate the Group for selling flour and animal feed at subsidised prices within the Emirate of Abu Dhabi are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, as a deduction from the cost of sales, on a systematic basis in the same period in which the sales
transaction is affected.
2.25 Earnings per share
The Group presents earning per share data for its shares. Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to shareholders
of the Group by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.
2.26 Research and development cost
In accordance with IAS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’, expenditure incurred on research and development, excluding known recoverable amounts on
contracts, and contributions to shared engineering programmes, is distinguished as relating either to a research phase or to a development
phase. All research phase expenditure is charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss. For development expenditure, this is capitalised as
an internally generated intangible asset only if it meets criteria, relating in particular to technical feasibility and generation of future economic
benefits. Expenditure that cannot be classified into these two categories is treated as being incurred in the research phase.

3

Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value risk, interest rate risk, cash flow
risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and operational risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.
Risk management
The Group’s international operations expose it to a variety of financial risks that include the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange
rates (foreign exchange risk), market prices, interest rates, credit risks, liquidity and operational risk. The Group’s financing and financial risk
management activities are centralised into Group Treasury (GT) to achieve benefits of scale and control. GT manages financial exposures of the
Group centrally in a manner consistent with underlying business risks. GT manages only those risks generated by the underlying commercial
operations and speculative transactions are not undertaken.
Through the Group’s risk management process, risks faced by the Group are identified and analysed to set appropriate actions to mitigate
risk, and to monitor risks and adherence to the overall risk strategy. Risk management activities are reviewed when appropriate to reflect
changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities.
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management activities.
The Group’s Audit Committee oversees how management manages the Group’s risk management process, and reviews the adequacy of the
risk management activities in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Group Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal
Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management activities, the results of which are reported to the
Audit Committee.
(a)

Market risk

(i)
Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect
to the Euro, GBP, Egyptian Pound, Turkish Lira and Swiss Franc. In respect of the Group’s transactions denominated in the US Dollar the
Group is not exposed to the foreign exchange risk as the AED is pegged to the US Dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations (note 30).
(ii) Price risk
The Group does not have investment in securities and is not exposed to equity price risk. The Group does not enter into commodity contracts
other than to meet the Group’s expected usage and sale requirements, and is exposed to commodities price risk. However, the Group has
entered into a derivative financial instrument whereby the Group will earn a minimum return of 1%, the value of which is driven by a
combination of interest rate movements and movements in foreign exchange rate of currencies that underlie the derivative financial instrument.
The principal amount under the derivative financial instrument is guaranteed in case the Group does not liquidate the structure before the
contractual maturity of the instrument.
(iii) Interest rate risk
The effective rates of interest on the Group’s bank liabilities are linked to the prevailing bank rates. The Group does not hedge its interest
rate exposure.
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3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk is managed on a Group basis, except for credit risk relating to accounts receivable balances. Each subsidiary is responsible for
managing and analysing the credit risk for each of their new clients before standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered.
The Group, in the ordinary course of business, accepts letters of credit/guarantee as well as post dated cheques from major customers.
The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimated losses in respect of trade and other receivables. The main
components of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates to individually significant exposures, and a collective loss component
established for groups of similar assets in respect of losses that have been incurred but not yet identified. The collective loss allowance is
determined based on historical data of payment statistics for similar financial assets and as per Group policy.
Credit risk arising from cash and bank balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions, is managed by making deposits taking
into account the bank’s/financial institution’s financial position, past experiences and other relevant factors.
(c)
Liquidity risk
Cash flow forecasting is performed at a Group level. GT monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient
cash to meet operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities at all times so that
the Group does not breach borrowing limits or covenants (where applicable) on any of its borrowing facilities. Such forecasting takes into
consideration the Group’s debt financing plans, covenant compliance, and, if applicable external regulatory or legal requirements – for example,
currency restrictions.
Surplus cash held by the operating entities are transferred to GT as per the Group’s cash pooling arrangements with a bank. GT invests
surplus cash in time deposits with appropriate maturities or sufficient liquidity to provide adequate head-room as determined by the abovementioned forecasts.
Typically the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational and capital expenditures in accordance with
the Group’s working capital requirements, including servicing financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances
that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.
The Group maintains the following lines of credit:
•	Facility for AED 767,340 thousand, which includes overdraft, guarantee line and import credit line. These facilities carry interest
of EIBOR/LIBOR/mid corridor rate plus margin.
• AED 145,023 thousand, short term loans which carries interest rate of EIBOR/LIBOR/mid corridor rate plus margin.
• AED 165,303 thousand, long term loans which carries interest rate of LIBOR plus margin.
(d) Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the Group’s processes, personnel,
technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and
regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour. Operational risks arise from all of the Group’s operations.
The Group’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage to the Group’s reputation
with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures that restrict initiative and creativity.
The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational risk is assigned to senior management
within each business unit. This responsibility is supported by the practicing and managing of key operational risks, for example:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Adequate internal controls
Reconciliations and monitoring of transactions
Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements
Policies and procedures compliance
Business resumption and IT disaster recovery plans
Code of business conduct
Adequate insurance coverage
Commodity Risk Management Committee
QA compliance function independent of manufacturing
Enterprise Risk Management
Monthly and quarterly business reviews
Training and professional development of talents

Compliance with Group standards is supported by periodic reviews undertaken by Internal Audit. The results of Internal Audit reviews are
discussed with the management of the business unit to which they relate, with summaries submitted to the Audit Committee and senior
management of the Group.
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3

Financial risk management (continued)

3.2 Capital risks management
Management’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business.
The Board seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher level of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position.
There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the year.

4

Accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in (note 2), management has made the following judgements which have a significant effect on the amounts of the assets and
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
Impairment losses on trade receivables
Management reviews its receivables to assess impairment at each reporting date. In determining whether an impairment loss should be
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, management makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows.
Accordingly, an allowance for impairment is made where there is an identified loss event or condition which, based on previous experience,
is evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of the cash flows.
Provision for obsolescence on inventories
Management reviews the movement in ageing and movements of its inventory items to assess loss on account of obsolescence on a regular
basis. In determining whether provision for obsolescence should be recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, management
makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating that future saleability of the product and the net realisable value for
such product and expired or close to expiry raw material and finished goods.
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
Management assigns useful lives and residual values to items of property, plant and equipment based on the intended use of the assets and
the expected economic lives of those assets. Subsequent changes in circumstances such as technological advances or prospective utilisation
of the assets concerned could result in the actual useful lives or residual values differing from the initial estimates.
Impairment of other assets
At each reporting date, management assesses whether there is any indication that its assets may be impaired. The determination of allowance
for impairment loss requires considerable judgment and involves evaluating factors including industry and market conditions.
Impairment of non-current assets
The carrying values of all non-current assets are reviewed for impairment, either on a stand-alone basis or as part of a larger cash generating
unit, when there is an indication that the assets might be impaired. Additionally, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
are tested for impairment annually. Any provision for impairment is recognised to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Impairment of
goodwill is not reversed. Impairment losses on other non-current assets are only reversed if there is a change in estimates used to determine
recoverable amounts and only to the extent that the revised recoverable amounts do not exceed the carrying values that would have existed,
net of depreciation or amortisation, had no impairment loss been recognised.
Income tax provision
Management has taken into consideration the requirements for tax provision. Management has estimated the tax provision based on the
year’s performance after adjustment of non taxable items. The tax provision was calculated based on the tax rate of the country where
operations were performed taking into consideration the exemptions that could be claimed by conventions either locally or internationally
as at the date of financial position.
Intangibles fair value estimation
Management has estimated the fair value of the spring water usage rights based on ten years estimate. Subsequent changes in the term
of license or water capacity levels may change the fair value of the rights.
Measurement of fair values
A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets
and liabilities. The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a valuation team
that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values.
The valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker
quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the valuation team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties
to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of IFRS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such
valuations should be classified.
Significant valuation issues are reported to the Group’s Audit Committee.
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Accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Measurement of fair values (continued)
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised
into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.
Level 1:	quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2:	inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3:	inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement
is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.
The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.
Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the relevant notes.

5

Segment reporting

Information about reportable segment for the year ended 31 December
The Group has two reportable segments, as described below. The reportable segments offer different products and services, and are managed
separately because they require different technology and operational marketing strategies. For each of the strategic business units, the Group’s
Executive Management review internal management reports on at least a quarterly basis.
The following summary describes the operations in each of the Group’s reportable segment:
Agri Business Division (ABD)
• Flour and Animal Feed, includes manufacturing and distribution of flour and animal feed.
Consumer Business Division (CBD)
• Bottled Water and Beverages includes manufacturing and distribution of drinking water, water based drinks and juices.
- Business operation in Turkey is of similar nature as “Bottled Water”, hence, it is also reported under CBD.
- Business operation of Al Bayan is manufacturing and distribution of drinking water, hence, it is also reported under CBD.
•	Food includes manufacturing and distribution of tomato and chilli paste, fruit concentrate, frozen vegetables, fresh dairy products,
and frozen baked products.
- Business operation in Egypt is of similar nature as “Food” hence it is also reported under CBD.
Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance is measured based on segment profit, as included
in the internal management reports data reviewed by the Group’s CEO. Segment profit is used to measure performance as management
believes that such information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within
these industries. Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm’s length basis.
Segment wise operating results of the Group, for the year are as follows:
Agri Business Division (ABD)
Flour and Animal Feed
2016
AED’000

External revenues
Gross profit
Finance income
Finance expense
Depreciation expense
Reportable segment profit/
(loss) after tax

Food

CBD Total

Total

2016
AED’000

2015
AED’000

2016
AED’000

2015
AED’000

2016
AED’000

734,675
369,879
11
(755)
59,656

628,729
292,491
1,130
(7,170)
51,431

174,560
23,160
1,827
(677)
1,085

131,541
11,472
346
(956)
1,087

909,235
393,039
1,838
(1,432)
60,741

226,494

135,688

108,298

(11,241)

(22,070)

124,447

86,228

361,888

312,722

–

5,251

5,761

32

5,215

32

2015
AED’000

1,102,706 1,106,080
317,746 307,054
20
165
(109)
–
26,247
24,359
237,441

Consumer Business Division (CBD)
Bottled Water and Beverages

2016
AED’000

2015
AED’000

2015
AED’000

760,270 2,011,941 1,866,350
303,963 710,785 611,017
1,476
1,858
1,641
(8,126)
(1,541)
(8,126)
52,518
86,988
76,877

Material non cash items;
Impairment losses on
trade receivables (net)

(546)

Agri Business Division

Others:
Segment assets
Segment liabilities
Capital expenditure

(62)

510

94

Consumer Business Division

Total

31 December 2016
AED’000

31 December 2015
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

31 December 2015
AED’000

31 December 2016
AED’000

31 December 2015
AED’000

626,308
133,426
28,050

537,753
143,763
21,726

1,134,168
196,582
167,921

1,051,064
161,851
121,217

1,760,476
330,008
195,971

1,588,817
305,614
142,943
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Segment reporting (continued)

Reconciliations of reportable segments’ gross profit, interest income and expense, depreciation, capital expenditure, revenues, profit or loss,
assets and liabilities.
2016
Reportable
segment totals
AED’000

Gross profit
Finance income
Finance expense
Depreciation
Capital expenditure

710,785
1,858
(1,541)
86,988
195,971

Unallocated
AED’000

(15,904)
15,405
(25,329)
3,763
1,893

Profit for the year
Total profit for reportable segments
Unallocated amounts
Other operating expenses
Net finance income
Consolidated profit for the period after income tax

2015
Consolidated
totals
AED’000

694,881
17,263
(26,870)
90,751
197,864

Reportable
segment totals
AED’000

611,017
1,641
(8,126)
76,877
142,943

Un allocated
AED’000

(13,723)
9,931
(7,592)
5,645
3,814

Consolidated
totals
AED’000

597,294
11,572
(15,718)
82,522
146,757

31 December 2016
AED’000

31 December 2015
AED’000

361,888

312,722

(97,694)
(9,924)
254,270

(83,747)
2,339
231,314

Reportable segment assets and liabilities are as follows:

Segment Assets
Agri Business Division
Consumer Business Division
Total assets for reportable segments
Other unallocated amounts
Consolidated total assets
Segment Liabilities
Agri Business Division
Consumer Business Division
Total liabilities for reportable segments
Other unallocated amounts
Consolidated total liabilities

6

31 December 2016
AED’000

31 December 2015
AED’000

626,308
1,134,168
1,760,476
784,628
2,545,104

537,753
1,051,064
1,588,817
786,227
2,375,044

133,426
196,582
330,008
529,410
859,418

143,763
161,851
305,614
525,019
830,633

31 December 2016
AED’000

31 December 2015
AED’000

950,019
172,897
76,318
38,047
30,782
10,721
38,276
1,317,060

945,391
144,220
70,304
34,978
33,150
11,715
29,298
1,269,056

Cost of sales

Raw materials
Salaries and benefits
Depreciation
Utilities
Maintenance
Rent expense
Others

Cost of raw materials for flour and feed products is stated after the deduction of the Abu Dhabi Government compensation amounting to
AED 269,024 thousand (2015: AED 365,799 thousand). The purpose of the compensation is to partially reduce the impact of increased
and volatile global grain prices on food retail prices for the consumers in the Emirate of Abu Dhabi (note 20).
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Selling and distribution expenses

Salaries and benefits
Marketing expenses
Transportation
Rent expense
Depreciation
Maintenance
Royalty fees
Others

8

133,286
61,244
59,306
7,385
5,648
3,803
4,692
16,075
291,439

98,972
54,868
57,190
4,778
2,636
1,304
3,636
8,023
231,407

31 December 2016
AED’000

31 December 2015
AED’000

82,997
19,292
12,253
8,340
1,426
6,245
1,645
15,050
147,248

74,335
15,564
9,967
9,267
–
1,570
2,743
19,272
132,718

31 December 2016
AED’000

31 December 2015
AED’000

4,394
445
633
5,472

4,014
315
305
4,634

31 December 2016
AED’000

31 December 2015
AED’000

9,508
1,697
140
–
7,365
18,710

9,704
2,226
602
722
1,399
14,653

(1,898)
(3,308)
13,504

–
(7,347)
7,306

Research and development costs

Salaries and benefits
Depreciation
Others

10

31 December 2015
AED’000

General and administrative expenses

Salaries and benefits
Legal and professional fees
Maintenance
Depreciation
Amortisation of intangible
Allowance for impairment of trade receivables
Rent expense
Others

9

31 December 2016
AED’000

Other income – net

Other income
Management fee
Income on sale of raw material/scrap
Insurance claim
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Others
Other expenses
Loss on sale of property plant and equipment
Professional fees
Other income – net

Management fee represents the wheat storage fees charged to an Abu Dhabi Government entity as part of food security program.
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Finance income

Interest income
Gain on derivative instrument

12

31 December 2015
AED’000

12,482
4,781
17,263

11,099
473
11,572

31 December 2016
AED’000

31 December 2015
AED’000

9,964
16,906
26,870

12,951
2,767
15,718

Finance expense

Interest expense
Foreign exchange losses

13

31 December 2016
AED’000

Income tax

The Group’s operation in Egypt, Turkey and Oman are subject to corporate taxation. Provision is made for taxes at rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the statement of financial position date on taxable profits of overseas subsidiaries in accordance with the fiscal regulations of the
countries in which they operate.

14

Basic and diluted earnings per share

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share at 31 December 2016 and 2015 was based on the profit attributable to shareholders
amounting to AED 254,270 thousand (2015: AED 231,314 thousand) and the weighted average number of shares outstanding of
600,000 thousand shares (2015: 600,000 thousand shares).

15

Property, plant and equipment
Land and
buildings
AED’000

Plant and
equipment
AED’000

Furniture
and Fixtures
AED’000

Motor
vehicles
AED’000

Capital work
in progress
AED’000

27,905
109,694
(48,096)
–
–
(1,793)
87,710
148,929
(142,086)
–
(4,661)
89,892

Total
AED’000

Cost
At 1 January 2015
Additions
Transfers
Acquisition*
Disposals/write-offs
Currency retranslation
At 31 December 2015
Additions
Transfers
Disposals/write-offs
Currency retranslation
At 31 December 2016

507,811
1,341
5,440
28,724
–
(2,728)
540,588
9,814
62,782
–
(9,015)
604,169

845,457
18,952
40,575
8,964
(14,789)
(1,783)
897,376
24,671
73,044
(32,815)
(11,823)
950,453

54,510
6,343
1,827
345
(20)
(3,163)
59,842
5,109
4,435
(72)
(987)
68,327

46,323
10,427
254
5,175
(3,628)
(201)
58,350
9,341
1,825
(1,421)
(803)
67,292

Depreciation
At 1 January 2015
Charge for the year
Disposals
Currency retranslation
At 31 December 2015

168,874
14,445
–
(304)
183,015

410,231
53,262
(7,231)
266
456,528

35,091
8,136
(16)
(1,424)
41,787

26,061
6,679
(3,597)
(98)
29,045

–
–
–
–
–

640,257
82,522
(10,844)
(1,560)
710,375

At 1 January 2016
Charge for the year
Disposals
Currency retranslation
At 31 December 2016

183,015
15,653
–
(1,620)
197,048

456,528
58,293
(30,476)
(3,707)
480,638

41,787
7,373
(72)
(555)
48,533

29,045
9,432
(682)
(386)
37,409

–
–
–
–
–

710,375
90,751
(31,230)
(6,268)
763,628

Net book amount
31 December 2016
31 December 2015

407,121
357,573

469,815
440,848

19,794
18,055

29,883
29,305
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89,892
87,710

1,482,006
146,757
–
43,208
(18,437)
(9,668)
1,643,866
197,864
–
(34,308)
(27,289)
1,780,133

1,016,505
933,491
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)
31 December 2016
AED’000

197,864
(23,757)
–
174,107

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
(Decrease)/increase in advance for property, plant and equipment
Non cash transfer within group
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment in the statement of cash flows

31 December 2015
AED’000

146,757
30,212
(7,481)
169,488

* During 2015, acquisition represented assets relating to Al Bayan Purification and Potable Water LLC, Shaklan Plastic Manufacturing Co. LLC and Al Manal Purification
and Bottling of Mineral Water LLC.

16

Goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Group’s Cash Generating Units where the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. The aggregate carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each unit is as follows:

Agri business division
Consumer business division (UAE operations)
Consumer business division (Turkish operations)
Consumer business division (Al Bayan operations)

2016
AED’000

2015
AED’000

61,855
31,131
2,486
92,864
188,336

61,855
31,131
2,486
92,864
188,336

The recoverable amounts of Agri Business Division and Consumer Business Division (UAE operations) cash-generating units were based on their
values in use determined by management. The carrying amounts of these units were determined to be lower than their recoverable amounts.
Values in use were determined by discounting the future cash flows generated from the continuing use of the units. Cash flows were projected
based on past experience and the five year business plan and were based on the following key assumptions:
Agri
business division

Anticipated annual revenue growth (%)
Discount rate (%)

4%–7%
11.00%

Consumer
business division
(UAE operations)

8%–15%
11.00%

Consumer
business division
(Turkey operations)

4% – 13%
15.00%

Consumer
business division
(Al Bayan operations)

6% – 9%
11.00%

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends in the food and beverage industry and are
based on both external and internal sources.

17

Intangible assets
Trademark
AED’000

Spring water rights
AED’000

Others
AED’000

Total
AED’000

At 1 January 2015
Additions
Currency retranslation

–
26,733
–

10,163
–
(2,049)

385
337
(115)

10,548
27,070
(2,164)

At 31 December 2015
Additions
Amortisation
Currency retranslation
At 31 December 2016

26,733
–
(1,426)
–
25,307

8,114
–
–
(1,604)
6,510

607
207
–
(23)
791

35,454
207
(1,426)
(1,627)
32,608

Spring water rights is considered to have an indefinite life as per the term of agreement. The Group is not aware of any material legal,
regulatory, contractual, competitive, economic or other factor which could limit its useful life. Accordingly, it is not amortised.
Values in use were determined by discounting the future cash flows generated from the continuing use of the units.
Cash flows were projected based on past experience and the ten year business plan and were based on the following key assumptions:
Anticipated annual revenue growth (%)
Discount rate (%)

4% – 14%
15.00%

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends in the food and beverage industry and are
based on both external and internal sources.
During 2015, the Group acquired trademark relating to Al Bayan as a part of acquisition of Al Bayan operations.
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18

Inventories
31 December 2016
AED’000

Raw and packing materials
Work in progress
Finished goods
Spare parts and consumable materials
Goods in transit
Provision for slow moving inventory

182,892
8,976
56,053
54,522
11,045
313,488
(12,268)
301,220

31 December 2015
AED’000

127,942
9,275
59,356
55,158
21,378
273,109
(11,077)
262,032

The movement in the provision for slow moving inventory was as follows:
31 December 2016
AED’000

Opening balance
Charge for the year
Reversal/write offs
Closing balance

19

31 December 2015
AED’000

11,077
4,377
(3,185)
12,268

11,444
3,056
(3,423)
11,077

Trade and other receivables
31 December 2016
AED’000

Trade receivables
Allowance for impairment loss
Prepayments
Other receivables

293,841
(13,400)
280,441
40,786
25,472
346,699

31 December 2015
AED’000

209,990
(8,185)
201,805
46,387
22,579
270,771

The Group’s exposure to credit and currency risk, and impairment loss related to trade and other receivables is disclosed in note 30.

20

Government compensation receivable
31 December 2016
AED’000

Receivable at beginning of the year from the Government of Abu Dhabi
Compensation for the year
Amounts received during the year
Balance as at 31 December

21

80,103
269,024
(253,770)
95,357

31 December 2015
AED’000

99,586
365,799
(385,282)
80,103

Cash and bank balances
31 December 2016
AED’000

Cash in hand
Current and savings account
Cash and bank balances
Escrow account (for dividend distribution 2009 to 2014)
Bank overdrafts (note 22)
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows
Cash and bank balances
Fixed deposits
Cash and bank balances including fixed deposits
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1,362
65,276
66,638
(26,948)
(18,317)
21,373
66,638
485,817
552,455

31 December 2015
AED’000

920
80,723
81,643
(27,130)
(10,358)
44,155
81,643
489,260
570,903
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Cash and bank balances (continued)

Fixed deposits are for a period not more than one year (2015: up to one year) carrying interest rates varying from 2.20% – 3.30% (2015:
1.50% – 2.55%).
Escrow account represents the amount set aside for payment of dividends. Equivalent amount has been recorded as liability in trade and
other payables. This restricted cash balance has not been included in the cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statements.

22

Bank borrowings

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group’s interest-bearing loans and borrowings, which are measured at
amortised cost.
31 December 2016
AED’000

31 December 2015
AED’000

231,541
55,101
18,317
304,959

245,723
36,734
10,358
292,815

165,303

165,303

Current liabilities
Credit facilities
Short term loan
Bank overdraft
Non-current liabilities
Term loan***
Terms and repayment schedule
31 December 2016
Currency

Interest Rate

Short term loan

Year of
maturity

USD/AED/EGP LIBOR/EIBOR/mid
corridor rate + margin*
2017
Credit facilities**
USD/AED/EGP LIBOR/EIBOR/mid corridor
rate + margin*
2017
Credit facilities (Capex)** USD/AED
LIBOR/EIBOR + margin* 2017
Term loan***
USD
LIBOR+ margin*
2020
Total

31 December 2015

Face value/limit
AED’000

Carrying amount
AED’000

Face value/limit
AED’000

Carrying amount
AED’000

145,023

73,418

123,893

47,092

717,340
50,000
165,303
1,077,666

231,541
–
165,303
470,262

712,953
25,000
165,303
1,027,149

243,747
1,976
165,303
458,118

*	Margin on the above loans and facilities varies from 0.50% – 1.25% (2015: 0.40% – 1.25%). Average interest rate on loan and facilities in Turkey amounting
to AED 3,882 thousand (2015: AED 315 thousand) is 11.70% (2015: 12.55%).
**	Credit facilities includes facilities with face value AED 350,000 thousand and credit facility (Capex) of face value AED 50,000 thousand which are secured
by a floating charge over the current assets, inventory and receivables of the Group.
***	During 2015, the Group availed a loan of AED 165,303 thousand for a tenure of five years. The loan is secured by floating charges over the current assets,
inventory and receivables of the Group.

23

Trade and other payables

Trade payables
Accruals
Other payables

24

31 December 2016
AED’000

31 December 2015
AED’000

110,448
149,189
59,001
318,638

119,719
128,119
70,593
318,431

Transactions with related parties

The Group, in the ordinary course of business, enters into transactions at agreed terms and conditions which are carried out on an arm’s
length basis, with other business enterprises or individuals that fall within the definition of a related party contained in International
Accounting Standard 24. The Company has a related party relationship with the Group entities, its executive officers and business entities
over which they can exercise significant influence or which can exercise significant influence over the Group.
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Transactions with related parties (continued)

The volume of related party transactions, outstanding balances and related expenses and income for the year are as follows:
(a)

Amounts due from related parties
31 December 2016
AED’000

31 December 2015
AED’000

Emirates Iron & Steel Company LLC – associate
Opening balance 1 January
Sales during the year
Amount received
Closing balance at 31 December

199
664
(547)
316

230
598
(629)
199

Dubai Cable Company (Private) Limited – associate
Opening balance 1 January
Sales during the year
Amount received
Closing balance at 31 December

41
177
(154)
64

35
155
(149)
41

(b)

Amounts due to related parties
31 December 2016
AED’000

General Holding Corporation PJSC (SENAAT) – parent
Opening balance 1 January
Directors and committee members’ fees charged
Other expenses
Payments
Closing balance at 31 December
Al Foah Company LLC – associate
Opening balance 1 January
Local purchases
Other expenses
Payments
Closing balance at 31 December

31 December 2015
AED’000

411
–
272
(457)
226

1,373
9
604
(1,575)
411

102
15,108
(2,097)
(11,534)
1,579

–
8
102
(8)
102

Transactions with key management personnel
Key management personnel compensation are as follows:

Short term benefits
Long term benefits

25

2016
AED’000

2015
AED’000

22,162
4,713
26,875

19,094
4,084
23,178

2016
AED’000

2015
AED’000

49,343
–
15,016
(3,095)
(163)
61,101

36,167
2,213
12,735
(1,772)
–
49,343

Provision for end of service benefits

Amounts recognised in balance sheet
Balance at start of the year
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Service cost (including interest costs)
Benefit payments
Gain on re-measurement
Balance at end of the year
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Provision for end of service benefits (continued)

Amounts recognised in profit or loss account
Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest expense
Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
Effect of changes in demographic assumptions
Effect of changes in financial assumptions
Effect of experience adjustments

Significant actuarial assumptions
Discount rate
Rate of salary increase
Sensitivity analysis
Discount rate
– 50 basis points
+ 50 basis points
Salary increase rate
– 50 basis points
+ 50 basis points

2016
AED’000

2015
AED’000

6,664
6,794
1,558
15,016

5,652
5,762
1,321
12,735

489
(4,028)
3,376
(163)

–
–
–
–

2016
AED’000

2015
AED’000

3.75%
0% in 2017 and
3.00% thereafter

3.50%
4.00%

1,913
(1,782)

1,545
(1,439)

(1,581)
1,680

(1,277)
1,356

The Group expects total benefit payments of AED 13,033 thousand in 2017 (2015: AED 5,503 thousand in 2016).
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Deferred tax liability

Deferred tax assets and liabilities resulted from the temporary differences between the tax base of an asset and liability and the carrying amount
of these assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements.
31 December 2016
AED’000

Balance at 1 January
Tax expense for the year
Currency retranslation

918
349
(944)
323

31 December 2015
AED’000

671
381
(134)
918

The analysis of deferred income tax is as follows:
31 December 2016
AED’000

Deferred tax asset
Current assets
Current liabilities
Gross deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment
Others
Gross deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax liabilities

296
–
296
(68)
(551)
(619)
(323)

31 December 2015
AED’000

946
–
946
(1,860)
(4)
(1,864)
(918)
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Other financial assets and liabilities

(a)	During 2016, the Group entered into a forward contract with a bank to buy AED against the Turkish Lira (TRY) to hedge its receivables in
TRY. Under the arrangement, the Group has fixed the rate for buying AED against TRY to manage its TRY/AED foreign exchange rate risk.
This is due to mature on 15 March 2017.
(b)	During 2014, the Group entered into a derivative instrument with a bank whereby:
i) Bank lends the Group USD 50,000 thousand at Libor + 0.90%
ii)	The Group invests USD 50,000 thousand in a structured product whereby the Group will earn a minimum return of 1% + a rate based
on the performance of a foreign exchange index created by the bank.
The principal amount of USD 50,000 thousand is guaranteed in case the Group does not liquidate the structure before the contractual maturity
of the instrument (5 years). Under the instrument, lending arrangement and the arrangement to invest in the index are contained in one
agreement and not contractually separable.
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over the counter derivatives) are determined by
using valuation techniques. The Group uses counterparty valuation at the end of each reporting date. This derivative instrument is classified
as a level 3 security.

Derivative instrument liability
Other liability
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31 December 2016
AED’000

31 December 2015
AED’000

7,235
54
7,289

3,253
57
3,310

Share capital

The share capital includes 526,650 thousand shares of a par value of AED 1 each, which have been issued for in-kind contribution.

Authorised share capital (1,000,000 thousand ordinary shares of AED 1 each)
Issued and fully paid share capital

31 December 2016
AED’000

31 December 2015
AED’000

1,000,000
600,000

600,000
600,000

During the Annual General Assembly held on March 24, 2016, the shareholders’ approved resolutions for authorised capital of AED 1 billion
with a remaining issued and paid up capital of AED 600 million.
The Group has not purchased any shares during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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Legal reserve

In accordance with the UAE Federal Law No 2 of 2015 and the Company’s Articles of Association, 10% of the profit for each year is transferred
to the legal reserve until this reserve equals 50% of the paid up share capital. The legal reserve is restricted and not available for distribution.
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Financial instruments

Credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:
Notes

Trade receivables
Other receivables
Due from related parties
Government compensation receivable
Cash at banks

19
19
24
20
21

31 December 2016
AED’000

31 December 2015
AED’000

280,441
25,472
380
95,357
551,093
952,743

201,805
22,579
240
80,103
569,983
874,710

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables as estimated by the Group’s management based on prior experience and the current
economic environment.
The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with overall exposure being spread over a large number of customers.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Impairment losses
The ageing of trade receivables at the reporting date was:
31 December 2016
AED’000

31 December 2015
AED’000

177,736
60,803
26,680
10,635
2,528
546
1,513

146,787
39,696
7,029
4,401
947
554
2,391

1,478
129
11,793
293,841

359
29
7,797
209,990

31 December 2016
AED’000

31 December 2015
AED’000

Trade receivables not impaired:
Not due
Past due 0 – 60 days
Past due 61 – 120 days
Past due 121 – 180 days
Past due 181 – 240 days
Past due 241 – 300 days
301 days and above
Trade receivable past due and provided for impairment:
Past due 181 – 240 days
Past due 241 – 300 days
301 days and above

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:

8,185
–
6,245
(1,030)
13,400

Balance at 1 January
Acquired during the year
Provision for receivables
Write offs

8,018
135
1,570
(1,538)
8,185

Liquidity risk
The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities:

31 December 2016
Trade and other payables
Due to related parties
Bank borrowings
Long term liability
Derivative instrument liability
31 December 2015
Trade and other payables
Due to related parties
Bank borrowings
Long term liability
Derivative instrument liability

Carrying value
AED’000

Contractual
cash flows
AED’000

Up to 1 year
AED’000

1-2 years
AED’000

2-5 years
AED’000

More than
5 years
AED’000

318,638
1,805
470,262
377
7,235
798,317

318,638
1,805
484,859
377
7,235
812,914

318,638
1,805
309,851
54
7,235
637,583

–
–
3,884
323
–
4,207

–
–
171,124
–
–
171,124

–
–
–
–
–
–

318,431
513
458,118
975
3,253
781,290

318,431
513
472,572
975
3,253
795,744

318,431
513
297,040
57
–
616,041

–
–
2,924
918
2,577
6,419

–
–
172,608
–
676
173,284

–
–
–
–
–
–
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Financial instruments (continued)

Market risk
Foreign currency risk
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows based on notional amounts:
2016
Amounts in ’000

Foreign purchases

2015

EUR

INR

SAR

CHF

GBP

BHD

EUR

INR

SAR

CHF

GBP

BHD

4,568

–

1,247

834

225

45

1,868

1,704

–

150

206

–

The following exchange rates were applicable during the year:
Average rate

EUR (Euro)
CHF (Swiss franc)
EGP (Egyptian pound)
SAR (Saudi riyal)
TRY (Turkish lira)
INR (Indian rupee)
GBP (British pound)
BHD (Bahraini Dinar)

Reporting date rate

2016

2015

2016

2015

4.064
3.728
0.391
0.978
1.218
0.055
4.976
9.663

4.073
3.821
0.478
0.978
1.355
0.057
5.618
9.673

3.861
3.601
0.202
0.978
1.039
0.054
4.530
9.678

4.012
3.705
0.468
0.978
1.260
0.055
5.443
9.684

A strengthening/weakening of the AED, as indicated below, against the EUR, CHF, EGP, SAR, TRY, INR, GBP and BHD at 31 December
would have increased/(decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis is based on foreign currency
exchange rate variances that the Group considered to be reasonably possible. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis as for 2015, albeit that the reasonably possible foreign
exchange rate variances were different, as indicated below.
31 December 2016

EUR (strengthening by 2.05%)
CHF (strengthening by 2.65%)
INR (weakening by 0.37%)
SAR (strengthening by 0.09%)
GBP (strengthening by 1.42%)
BHD (weakening by 0.08%)
EGP (weakening by 3.87%)
TRY (weakening by 6.66%)

31 December 2015

EUR (weakening by 0.02%)
CHF (weakening by 0.45%)
INR (weakening by 0.29%)
SAR (strengthening by 0.08%)
GBP (weakening by 0.58%)
BHD (strengthening by 0.67%)
EGP (weakening by 0.58%)
TRY (strengthening by 0.14%)

The above analysis is based on currency fluctuations during January 2017 (2015: January 2016).
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Equity
AED’000

–
–
–
–
–
–
(334)
(1,847)
(2,181)
Equity
AED’000

–
–
–
–
–
–
(3)
51
48

Profit/(loss)
AED’000

(362)
(80)
–
(1)
(14)
–
–
–
(457)
Profit/(loss)
AED’000

2
3
–
–
6
–
–
–
11
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Financial instruments (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk
At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments was;
31 December 2016
AED’000

31 December 2015
AED’000

Financial assets

485,817

489,260

Variable rate instruments
Financial liabilities

470,262

458,118

Fixed rate instruments

The fair value of the Group’s financial instruments is not materially different from their carrying amount.
At 31 December 2016, if interest rates on borrowings had been 1% higher/lower with all other variables held constant, profit for the year
would have been AED 3,686 thousand (2015: AED 3,538 thousand) lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expense.
Capital management
The Group’s objectives for managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an efficient capital structure to optimise the cost of capital. In maintaining
an appropriate capital structure and providing returns for shareholders in 2016, the Group provided returns to Shareholders in the form of
dividends for the year 2015, current details of which are included in the statement of changes in equity for the year.
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Contingent liabilities and capital commitments
31 December 2016
AED’000

31 December 2015
AED’000

Bank guarantees and letters of credit

70,327

64,386

Capital commitments

60,714

80,628

At 31 December 2016 guarantees of AED 54,347 thousand were outstanding (2015: AED 52,626 thousand) and is included in bank
guarantees and letter of credit above.
The above bank guarantees and letters of credits were issued in the normal course of business. These include deferred payment credit,
performance bonds, tender bonds, deferred payment bills, inward bill and margin deposit guarantees.
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows:

Less than one year
Between one and five years
More than five years

31 December 2016
AED’000

31 December 2015
AED’000

20,007
30,112
35,439
85,558

19,253
30,932
6,632
56,817

The Group has leasehold land, building and vehicles under operating leases. The lease terms are with option to renew the lease at the time
of expiry.
Lease expense charged for the year is AED 25,559 thousand (2015: AED 26,437 thousand).
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Acquisition of subsidiaries

(a)	On November 13, 2016 Agthia Group PJSC signed a 100% purchase agreement for the shares in the water business of Delta Marketing
Company, based in Jeddah, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia producing “Al Ain” brand water. The transaction is expected to be completed in the
first quarter of 2017, following regulatory approvals and other closing conditions.
(b)	During 2015, Agthia Group PJSC acquired 100% shares of three entities, Al Bayan Purification and Potable Water LLC, Shaklan Plastic
Manufacturing Co. LLC in UAE and Al Manal Purification and Bottling of Mineral Water LLC in Sultanate of Oman. The Group took over
management control of the entities on 31 August 2015 and completed 100% equity acquisition by October 2015.
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Investment in Joint Venture

During 2016, the Group entered into a joint venture agreement with Al Wafir Marketing Services Company K.S.C.C., to establish a joint
water bottling plant in Kuwait. The plant is expected to commence operations by the second half of 2017 and will mainly produce water
under the ‘Al Ain’ brand.
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